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Independent auditor's report
To the Shareholders of Maldives Islamic Bank Plc
Ouwr opinion

We have audited the financial staterents of Maldives Islamic Bank Ple (the “Bank”). The financial
statements of the Bank comprise:

* the statement of financlal position as at 31 December 2024

* the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

* the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:

* the statement of cash flows for the year then ended: and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include a summ ary of material accounting policy
information.

In our epinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International
Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed In the
context of our audit of the financial statements, and in forming our apinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Impairment of receivable from financing
activities

As at 31 December 2024, 50.1 % of the total
assets of the bank consisted of receivables
from financing activities amounting to MVR 5.7
billion shown net of loss allowance of MVR
1458 million.

The Bank adopts an individual impairment
assessment  approach  for  individually
significant credit impaired receivables from
financing activities and a collective impairment
assessment approach for receivables from
financing activities which are not individually
significant and credit Impaired. Individual
impairment is based on assessing the amount
and timing of estimated future cashflows from
collateral,

Under the collective approach, the Bank
applies 3 stage model and allocates receivables
to stage 1,2,3 using criteria in accordance with
IFRS 9 and calculates expected credit loss (ECL)
allowance by using following key inputs:
probability of default (PD), loss given default
{LGD) and exposure at default (EAD).

PD is determined at segment level using
historical collection trends, credit migration
rate in the Markov chain approach. The data
used to derive the PD is based on the Bank's
own experience at the reporting date. The
output PD is then adjusted to reflect macro-
economic conditions of Maldives using score
card approach. The LGD used for segments is
driven by estimation of loss rates, taking into
account the Bank's history from internal debt
collection activities and customer repayments.
The Bank formulates and incorporates multiple
forward  looking  scenarios  reflecting
management wviews of potential future
economic developments Into ECL estimates
involve use of significant judgements,

Specific work that we performed on the loss
allowance on receivables from financing
activities recognised by management included
the following:

- Tested the completeness of the receivables
from financing activities considered in the loss
calculation by checking the mathematical
accuracy of the listing obtained and matched
the outstanding balances with the general
ledger.

- Tested the receivables from financing
activities in stage 1, 2 and 3 on a sample basis
to verify they were classified to the appropriate
stage in accordance with IFRS 9,

- Assessed the reasonableness of
management’s estimated future recoveries of
Individual customer receivable from financing
activities including the expected future cash
flows, discount rates and valuation of collateral
held by testing the key underlying assumptions
and evaluating the process by which those
were drawn up.

- Tested the accuracy and completeness of
underlying Information in receivable from
financing activities used In the expected
financing activities loss allowance calculation,
such as disbursed and undisbursed facility
amounts, deposits, values of the collateral,
aging and tenure periods by agreeing details
with the respective customer statements and
files on a sample basis.

- Tested the methodology applied in the loss
allowance calculation induding the ECL model
by checking compliance with the requirements
of IFRS 9, Financial instruments; recognition
and measurement, and also considered
reasonableness of macro-economic and ather
factors used by the management by comparing
them with publicly available data and
information sources,
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Significant estimates and assumptions used by
the management in such calculations and the
basis for Impairment allowance is disclosed in

- Assessed the adeguacy of the related
financial statement disclosures as set out on
Notes 12 and 37 for compliance with required

Mote 12 and 37, IFRS 9 disclosures,

The less allowance in respect of receivables
from financing activities represent
management’s best estimate of the
impairment loss incurred and expected within
the receivable portfolio at the reporting date.

We have identified expected credit loss
allowance for receivables from financing
activities as a key audit matter az the
calculation of the loss allowance is a complex
area and requires management to make
significant assumptions and judgements.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other infarmation. The other Infarmation comprises the Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2024 but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’
report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially
Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, If we conclude that there is a material misstaterment therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the finandal statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that gives true and Fair
view in accordance with the IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by International Accounting
standards Board, and for such internal contrel as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
of error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Bank's financial reporting process,
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal contral.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertalnty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events
or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with ethical
Fequirements in accordance with the Code of Ethics regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclasure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should rot be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's repart is Mohamed Siraj
Muneer.

MALE" For DELOITTE PARTNERS

22 March 2025 Snd
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HLhamed Sira) Muneer
Partner



MALCIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 315T BECEMBER 2024

ASZETS

Cadh and ballancos with othar hasks
Balarras with Maldives Manatary Authiorty
Dize fram banks

Irvestments in equity securities
Invesrments in other financal instrumants
Mot raceivablas from financing acteities
Propety and equipmient

Right-cfuse azsats

Intangitle assets

OFier assess

Peleired fax asses

Totl astets

LEABILITIES

Customiers’ accaunts

Dhue to banks and oth er financial mstitutions
Prositions

Curreng tao liakility

Lease liakities

Dbt inbilitees

Tatal liabiltes

EQUITY

Share cagaal and share premium
Statuiary radsrds
Hon=distribaitable capita ressse
Fair unll:ﬁ FEEA P

Hecaingd sarnings

Total equity

Total liabilities and aquity
Commitmenis
Het asset value per shane

shREE

2024 2023
MR MR
416,135,438 419.351,119
1,620,234, 351 WIN2B0, 143
153,992319
1 E7.000,000 112 400,000
2,897 867 358 2277 053, BEE
5,744 455,182 4,105, 764,555
118,384,687 04,570,547
105,995 474 115,065,782
1 E014,527F 11,3926232
261404312 176377600
73 4198878
11962 404935 8734889114
127012881 HALTATG T
955,364,134 £LHO051.674
3,051 472 FO57 455
B4, 753 647 39,560, 190
B5,558 845 B0,556,067
75,001,643 73,631,800
10,310, 745126 T306,7 73571
137,500,070 37 500,070
150,000 D5 LR R L]
17402518 16,108,342
610,000 600 49,125,000
5BE, 752425 A75. a0 X0y
1,151,661 813 928,115,543
1,460 404 G35 2,234.80%,114
1,27 276,204 1,414,383,571
5118 4115

The fimancial statemengs are 1o be read in canjunction with the wlated notes which farm an integral pan of the Tnandal
sararments of the Bank set ot an pages 10 ts 78, The repart of the independant suditars is given on pages 1 ard 5.

These financial siatements wene spproved by the Board of Dérectors ard signed-oa its bahalf by:

e |
g a2

Chilel Finaneial Officer

Hith March 2035
Male'

Mr, Mufaddal Idrs Kha
Managing Diractor /
Chief Expcutive Cefecar

mirl

o

| S b

Mr. Fyaz Wahe=d
Chairman of
Hoard Audit Commities




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34ST DECEMBER 20324
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MALDIWES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
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MALDIVES 1SLAMIC BANK PLC
BTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315T DECEMBER 2024
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Maldives Islamic Bank Public Limited Company (the "bank”) was ncorparated and domiciled in the
Republic of Maldives since 01" Apnl 2010 as & private limited liability company and presently
governed under the Companies” Act No.7 of 2023 and Maldives Benking Act No 24 of 2010 The
bank received the banking license under the Maldives Monetary Authority Act No, 6 of 1981 on 02
August 2010 to conduct Islamic banking business in the Maldives and obtained certificate of
approval to commence aperetions on 06™ March 2011. The bank subsequently converted to a Public
Company on 18" June 2019 under the Companies Act and the bank listed its shares on the Maldives
Stock Exchange on 17" November 2019, The registered office of the bank is at H
Mednuziyaaraiydhoshuge, 20097, Medhuziyaaraly Magu, Male’ City, Republic of Maldives,

The bank provides full range of banking sendices based on Shari'ah principies inchuding accepting
deposits. granting of financing facitities and other ancillary sarvices,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

i. Statement of compliance

These tinancial stataments have been prepared and presented in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Stendards Beard ("1ASB™), They were authorlsed
for issue by the bank's Board of Directors or 17th March 2025

il. Functional and presentation currency

Thesa fnancial statements are presented in Maldivian Rufivaa, which is the bank's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rufiyaa, except when otherwise indicated,

iili. Use of judgements and estimates

In- preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumpiions that affect the application of the bank's accounting policies ard the reparted amounts
of assets, Habllities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ fram these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisians to estimates are
recagnised prospectively

A. Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting poficies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

— establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining the methodology for incorporating farward-
lenking information into the measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to
measure ECL

— classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are

held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the finang] ﬁmﬁ&ﬂjm
principal amaunt autstanding, 'ﬂ'la‘_"'l'—'---—--"3F_-‘_-''_-HLHH\\“'“K:&‘I
G )




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

_lnfnrmatiqﬂ about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ended 31" December 2024 is included in the follewing notes

= impairment of financial instruments: determination of inputs into the ECL measurement maodel,
including key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cask flows and incorparatian of
{orward-looking information

— measurement of the fair value of financial instruments with significant uncbservable inputs,

— recogriten and measurement of contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihoad and
magnitude af an owtflow of resources.

L. Going concern

The Board has made an assessment of the bank’s ability to continue as a going concem and are
satisfied that it has the resources to confinue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermare,
thie Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upan the bank's
ability to continue as a going concemn and it does not intend either to liquidate or to cease
operaticns of the bank, Therefore, the financial staternenis cantinue to be prepared on the going
cancern basis,

CHAMGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Except for the described accounting palicies below, the applied accounting poficies in these financial
statements are the same as those applied in the financial statements as at and for the year ended
317 December 2024,

The fallowing amendments to IFRS have been applied by the bank in preparation of these financial
statements. The below were effective from 15t January 2024

{a) MNew and amended accounting standards adopted by the bank

The bank has applied the following standards and amendments far the first time: far their annual
reporting periodgs commencing 1 January 2024, Maost of the amend ments [isted belaw did nat have
any significant impact an amounts recognised in prior periods-and are not expected to significantly
affect current or future periods. The bank did not have to change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these standards,;

- Amendrrents to 145 T Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
MHsclasures fitled Supplier Finance

- Arrangements Amendments to 15 1 Class:fication of Liabilties as Current or Man-current

- Amendments to 1AS 1 Presertation of Financial Statements— Mon-current Liatilitieas with
Covenants e =

i I T --:::'.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY ([CONTINUED)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2024 and

earlier application i permitted; however, the bank has not eary adopted the new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements,

The fallewing amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact
on the bank's financial statements,

- Amendments ta A5 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchangse Rates titled Lack of
Exchangeability
— IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements
— |FRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability; Disclosures
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Foraign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translsted into the functionsl currency (Maldivian Rufiyaa) at
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Maonetary assets and labilities dencminated in foreign currencies are transiated inte Maidivian
Ruffyaa at the exchange rate at the reporting date. For finarcial reporting, the bank uses the mid-
rate between the selling and buying rate for foreign currencies prevalling at the reporting date, The
foreign curréncy gain or loss on monetary items is the gifference between the amortised costin the
functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective profit, impairment and
payments during the year, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Mon-monetary assets and lakilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated into Maldivian Rufives at the exchange rate when the fair value is determined. Narn-
monetary ifems that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the fansaction

Fareign currency differences arsing on transiation are gererally recognised in profit or loss

4.2 Profit

i, Effective profit rate

Profit income and expense are recognised in profit or lass using the effective profit method. The
‘affective orofit rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recaipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

— The gross: carrying amount of the financial asset; or
= The amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective profit rate for finandal instruments other than purchased or
orginated credit-impaired assets, the bank estimates future cash fiows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, but not expected credit losses, Far purchased or ariginated credit-
impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective profit rate is calculated using estimated future

——

cash flows including expected credit losses. ﬁﬂllt—g Parine
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4.2 Profit (continued)

i, Amortised cost and gross carrying amount (continued)

The caleulation of the effective profit rate includes ransection costs and fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective profit rate. Trarsaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset o financial liability.

iil. Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

Thia ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability 15 the amount at which the financial asset
or finarcial |I'a|:‘.'|ili‘t}' is measured oninitial remgnitipn minius the pnncipa! repa}rmenti [P&}"-'"I"IEI'IIH:I.
plus ar minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective profit method of any difference
betwean that initial amount and the maturty amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance, The 'gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any sxpected credit loss allewance.

iii. Calculation of profit income and expense

The effective prafit rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of
a financial asset or a financial lakility, In caleulating profit income and expense, the effective profit
rate is applied to the gross carryng amount of the asset {when the asset is not credit impaired) or
to the amortised cost of the llability, The effective profit rate is revised as a rasult of perodic re-
estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments to refiect movements in market rates of profit.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
profit income is calculated by applying the effective profit rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of profit income reverts to the
gross basis,

For financial assets that were credit-impaired cn indtial recognition, profit income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective profit rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation
of profit income does not revert 1o a gross bass, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

The bank recognises its income from financing and investment activities as follows;

» |ncome on fimancing cortracts of Murabahah and Istisna’ i recognised on time apporticrsd
basis ovar the penod and the profit rate is determined in advance upon agreement of all parties

s |ncome from Diminishing Musharakah & recognised on bank's share of investment aver the
period based on the profit rate determined inadvance upon agreement of all parties.

* |[ncome on Mudarabah financing is recogrised whnen the right to receive payment is established
or distribution by the Mudarib. in case of losses in Mudarabah, the bank's share of losses are
deducted from its share of Mudanb-capital. The bank's share a5 a Mudanb i5 accrued basec an
the terms and conditions of the related Mudarabah agreements.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTIMNUED)
4.2 Profit {[continued)
iii. Caleulation of profit income and expense (continued)

* Income from short-term placements is recognised an a fime-apportioned basis over the perod
af the contract using the effective profit rate methad, The effective profit is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected Iife of a
financial asset or Hability (or, where appropriste, a sharter period) to the CBrrving amaount of the
financial asset or lability. The effective profit rate is established on initial recognition of the
financizl asset and liability and is not revised subsequently

= Placement fees income for arranging a financing between a financier and investar and other
investment income are recognised on an accrual basis,

» Ingcome from dividends is recogniced whan the right ta recenve the dividend is established.
Presentation

Profit income calculated using the effective profit methed presented in the statament of profit or
loss includes:

= Profit on financial assets and financial labilities measured &t armortised cost

« Profit income on other financial assets mandetorily measured at FVTPL are presented in net
meame fram ather financial instruments at FYTPL,

Profit espense presented in the statermnent of profit or loss includes:
& Einancial liabilities measured at amortised cast.
4.3 Fees and commission

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral to the EIR {Effective Interest (Profit) Rate
of a financial asset or financial liability are capitalised and included in the measurament of the EIR
[Effective Interest (Prafit) Rate) and recagnised in the income statement over the sxpected fife of
thie Instrument.

Cither fee and commission income, including card operations fees, imvestment management fees
and commission on trade services are recognised as the related services are performed

A5 per IFRS 15, the bank adopls principles based five step model for revenue recognition,
Accardingly, revenue is recognised anly when all of the followirmg criteria are met.

* The parties to the contract have approved the contract/s,

*  The entity can identify each party’s rights regerding the goods or services to be transierrad,

=  The entity can identify the payment terms far the goods or serveces 1o be transferred,

= The contract has commercial substance;

= |t s probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitied in exchange
for the goods or services that will be transterred to the customer,

I
The scope of IFRS 15 s limited to fees and commission revenue of the bank.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.4 Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Met income from other financial instruments at FYTPL relates to financial assets gesignated as at
FVTPL The line item includes fair value changes and profit for the pericd.

4.5 Dividend income

Dividend income Is recognised when the right 1o receive income is established. Usually, this is the
ax-dividend date for quoted equity securities. Dividend incomes are presented in the profit or loss

Dividends an equity instruments designated as at FVOC! that clearly represent a recavery of part of
the cost of the investrment are presented in OC).

4.6 Leasips

At inception of a contract, the bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
i, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right ta cantrol the use of an identified asset far a
period of lime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right ko
contral the use of an identified asset, the bark uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16,

Bank acting as a lessee

At commencement or on modification of 2 contract that contains a lease component, the bank
allocates consideration in the contract 10 each lease component an the basis of its relative stand-
alone price. Howewver, for leases of head office pramises, branches and ATM locations the bank has
glected npol to separate non-lease components and accounts for the lease and nan-lease
components as a single lease companant.

The bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease llability at the lease commencement date. The
right-af-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of tha lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 1o dismantle and remove any improvements made to
head office premises, branches or ATM locations,

The: right-of-use asset is subsequently deprecieted using the straight-line methad from the
commencemernt date to the end of the lease term. In additions, the right-of-use asset is perindically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured 8t the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the profit rate implicit in the isase or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the bank's incremental borrowing {funding) rate. Generally, the bank
uses its incremental borrawing (funding) rate a5 the discount rate.

The bank determines its incremental borrowing {funding) rate by analysing its borrowings [funding)
from various external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lesse and

type of asset leased. e
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

d.,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {CONTINUED)
4.6 Leases (continued)
Bank acting as a lessee (continued)

Lease payments incluced in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fxed payments, including in substance fixed paymerits;

— varisble lease payments that depend cn an index or a rate, initially measurad using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the bank is reasanably cerlaim to exercise an extansion

aption, and penalbes for early termination of & lease unless the benk is reasorably certain nat
to terminate early,

The lease liability is meassured at amortised cost using the effective profit method. It is rameasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an indax or rate, if thera
is a charge in the bank's estimate of the amount expected to be pavable under a residual value
guarantee, if the bank changes its asssssment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination aption or if there is & revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability i remeasurad in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit ar loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zera.

The bank presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as separate captions in the statement of
financial position.

Shart term leases and leases of fow-volie gsers

The bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The bank recogrises the lease payments associated with these [eases
as an expense on a straight-line basks over the lease tenm.

4.7 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 1L is recogmsed in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in eguity of inOCL

The bank has determined that fines and penalties related to income tax, inciuding uncertain tax
treatments do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under 1A%
37 Prowvisions, cantingent liabilities and contingent assets,

I Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payabie or recenvable in respect of previous years. The amaunt
of current tax payable or receivable is the best astimate of the tax amount expected o be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if ary, It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date.




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (COMTINUED)
4.7 Income tax {continued)
il., Deforred tax

Defarred tax is recognised In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
pssets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax fosses, unused tax credits and deductible
temparary differences to the extant that it is probabla that future tacable profits will be available
against which they can be used, Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the-amount of taxable temparary differences is insufficient
to recognise & deferred tax asset in full then future taxable profits; adjusted for reversals of existing
ternpaorary differences, are considered, based on business plan of the bank. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised: such réductions are reversed when the probability of future
{axable profits improves,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferted tax assets and liabilities are offset it there is a legally enforceabla right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same fax autharity on the same
taxabie entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle currant tax lLabilities and assets
on-a net basks or thelr tay assets and labilities will be raalised simultaneoushy

4.8 Financial assets and financdial liabilities

i. Recognition and initial measurement

The bank initially recognises receivables Trom financing activities, customers’ accounts, an the date
on which they are ariginated. All other financial instruments arerecognised on the trade date, which
is the date on which the bank becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A fimancial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an iterm not at FVTPL
trensaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition ar issue. The fairvalue of a financial
imstrument &t initial recogrition is generally its tfransaction price.

ii. Classification

Financiol assets

A financial asset is measured &t amortised cost if it meets both of the following cenditions and is
notdesignated as at FVTPL:

— The asset is held within a business modei whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are

solely payments of principal and profit {"SPPP°),
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4.8 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
ii. Classification {continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise receivables from Murabaha, Istisna’,

Diminishing Musharaka, Education Financing, balances with Maldnes Monetary Authonty ("MMAT),
£ash im hand and balances with banks,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not keld for trading. the bank may rrevacabhby
elect to prosent subsequent changes in fair value in DCIL This electian is made on an investrment-
by-investment basis. Accordingly, the bank has jrrevocably elected to present subsequent changes
in fair value in OCI,

Financial assets designated at FVOC! comprise bank’s investments in eguity shares.

Other financial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTEL based on the SPEP test,
Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise bank's moeney market placements and, Wakala and
Mudharaba placements with a varable rate of retum, where SPPP crileria are not met. Wakals
facilities with fixed rate of return are measured at amortized gost

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recagnition unless the bank change
its business model for maneging financial assets, ino which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified an the first day of the first reporting pericd following the change in the business moded,

Busiress model assessiment

The bank makes an assessment of the objectve of a business modeal in which an asset is heid at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business |5 managed and infermation s
pravided to management. The information considerad includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the oparation of those policies in practice,
In pnrﬁ-:ul.:.r. wihether manag-:m:nt': :tra'lt-gjr facuses an earning contractusl _ﬂrdl'ﬂl FEWE LS,
maintaining a particular profit rate prafile, matching the duration of the financial assets o the
duration of the labilities that are funding those assets or readising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

- how the performance of the partfolic is evaluated and reported to the bank's manggement;

— the risks that affect the performance of the busingss made! (and the financial assets heid within
that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated (2.g. whether compoensation i5 based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected) and

—  the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information abowul sales Bctivity 15 not
considersd in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the bank's stated cbyective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash Fows are realised.

Upll;_'lll.l.ﬂ ﬂa.r'rnr. -H""'\-\.\_\_\_L
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [CONTINUED)

4.8 Fimancial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
ii. Classification (continued)

Assessment of whether contractual eash flows are solely payments of principal and profit

Fer the purpeses of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition.

'‘Prafit’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular perind of time and for other basic lending
(financing) risks and costs [e.g. liquidity risk and adrinistrative costs), as well as profit margin

In assessing whether the contractual cash fiows are solely payments of principal and profit, tha bank
considers the contractual terms of the instrument, This inciudes assacting whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the tirming or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, The bank considers:

— centingent #vents that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

= leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

= terms that [imit the bank's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.9. non-recourse financi ng
facilities); and

— features that modify cansideration of the time value of maney [e.g. periodical reset of prafit
rates).

The bank halds a portfalio of long-term fixed rate financing facilities for which the bank has the
option to propose to revise the profit rate at periodic reset dates. These reset rights are limited ta
the marxet rate at the time of revision. The borrowers (customers) have an option to either accept
the revised rate or redeem the finance facility subject to rebate policy of the bank The bank has
determined that the contrectusl cash fiows of these fnancing facilities are solely payments of
principal and profit because the cotion varies the profit rate in.a way that (s consideration far the
tima value of money, credit risk, ather basic lending {financing) risks and costs assaciated with the
principal amcunt outstanding.

il Subseguent measurement

Subsaguent measurament of debt instruments depends an the bank’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measusement cetegornes into
which the bank classifies its debt instruments:

« Amartised cost: Ascets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flaws
represent solely payments of principal arnd profit, are measured 8l maortised cost, Profit income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective profit rate methad, Any
gain ar lpss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/{losses) vogether with foreign exchange gains and |osses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line itern in the statement of profit or loss,




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.8 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

lii. Subsequent measurement [Continued)

» FVOL): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and profit, are measured
at FVOLI, Movements in the cafrying amaunt are taken through O, except for the recognition af
impairment gains or |osses, profit income and foreign exchange gains and |osses, which are
racognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
praviously recognised in Ol is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recagnized in other
gains/(losses) Profit income fraom these financlal assets is included in finance income using the
effective profit rate method. Foreign awchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/{losses), and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit ar joss.

= FVPL Assats that do not meet the criteria for amodised cost or FPYOC are measured at PyPL, &
gain or loss on a debt investment that s subsequently measured at FVYPL is recognised in profit or
Ioss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises

Equity instruments are subsequenthy measured at FYOC),
Reclassifications

Financial assets are nat reclessified subsequeart to their inltial recognition, except in the period after
the barnk changes its business model far managing financial assets.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified a5 measured at amortlzed cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FYTPL if it ks classified as held-far-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest (profit) expense are recognized in profit or loss, Othar financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amartized cost using the effective interest {profit] method
Interest (profit) expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in profit or loss,

The bank’s non-dervative financial Habiiites consist of amcurt due 1o related parthes, barrowings
(funding} and ather payables. Such financial babilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directhy attributablie transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective profit methaod.

Interest (Profit) rate benchmark reform

When the basis for determining the contractugl cesh flows of a financial asset or financial liability
measured at amortised cost changed as a result of interest (profit) rate benchmark reform, the bank
updated the effective interest {profit) rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the
change that is required by the reform. A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash

flows is required by interest {profit) rate benchmark reform if the Fnllﬂwlh}' ﬁl&ﬂ.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {CONTINUED]

4.8 Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
iii. Subseguent measurement (Continued)

® the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and
* the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows 15 economically equivalent te the
previcus basis = i.e. the basis immediately before the change

When changes were made to a financial asset or finandal lizbility in addition to changes to the basis
far determining the contractual cash flows required by interest {profit) rate benchmark reform, the
bank first updated the effective interest (profity rate of the firancial asset or financial Bability to
reflect the change that is required by interest (profit) rate benchmark reform. After that, the bank
applied the policies on accounting for madifications to the additional changes,

iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

The bark derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, ar it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in & transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
ar in which the Bank neither transfers mor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of tha financial asset,

On derecagnition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or

the carrying amount allocated to the partion of the asset derecognised) and the sum -of {i) the
censideration received including any new assef ohtalned less any new llability assumed) and [ii] any

cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in QCI s recognised in profit or loss,

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OC| in respect of equity investment sacurities designated as
at FNOC is not recognised [ profic or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any profit in
trarisferred financial assets that gualify far derecognition that is created or retained by the Bank is
recagnised as a separate asset ar Hability,

The Bank entars intg transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised an its statement af financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred azcets

ar 4 portien of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are nat derecognised,

In transactions in which the bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
af puwnershipof a financial asset and it retains control over tha asset. the bank cantinues 1o recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing tnvolvernent, determired by the extent to which it is exposed
to changes in the value of the transferred assel

Firanclal liabilities

The bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged of

cancelied, or expira,
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANIK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINKANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
4.8 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {continued)

. Modification of financial assets
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified. then the bank evaluates whather the cash flows of the
madified asset are substantially different.

IFthe cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the ariginal financial asset is derecognised
and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transactions costs. Ary fees
received as part of the madification are aceounted for as follows:

If cash flows are modified when the borrewer (custamer) is in financial difficulties, then the objective
of the modification is usually to maximise recovery of the onginal contractual terms rather than to
griginatea new asset with substantially different terms, If the bank plans to modify a financial asset
In @ way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of
the asset should be written off befare the madification takes place {see below far write-off policy).

This approach impacts the results of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition
criteriz are nat Wsually et im such casaes.

If the modification of a financial asset measurad at amortised cost or FYOC! does not result in
gerecagnition of thie financial asset, then the Bank first recaiculates the gross cerryving amaunt of
the financial asset using the original effective profit rate of the asset and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

If such 2 medification is caried out because of financial difficutties of the borrower (customer), then
the gain or loss is presented together with impaimment losses. In other cases, it is presented as profit
income calculated using the effective prafit rate method,

Wi, Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Bank currentiy has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends either (o settle them on & net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
ligbility simultanecusly.

Income and expenses are présented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS Standards, ar
for gains and losses ansing from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading actvity,

wii. Fair value measurement

'Fair walug' is the price that would be received to s2ll an asset or paid to transfer a2 fiability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date, The fair value of
a liability refiects its non-pedormance risk,

‘When one is avallable, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. & market is regarded as 'active’ if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing infoermation on an

: : e ==
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4_8 Financial Assets and Financlal Liabilities [continued)
wii  Fair value measurement {continued)

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses waluation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimise the use of uncbservable inputs, The

chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take inta
account in pricing a transacticn.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - Le, the fair value of the consideration given or received If the Bank detarmines
that the fair value on Initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by 2 quoted price In an active market foram identical asset ar liability nor based
on @ valuation techrigue for which any unabservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation
to the difference, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted o defer
the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in profit or [oss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but no later than when the valuation is wholly supparted by observablie market data or the
transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a llability measured at fair valee has a bid peice and an ask price, then the Zank
measures assets and long positions ata bid price and liabilities and short positions at-an ask price,

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit rsk
that are managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure Lo sither market or credit risk are
measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell & net long position {or paid to transfer
a4 net short position) for the particular risk exposure, Portfolio-level adpustments - e.g. big-ask
adjustment or credit risk adjustments that reflect the measurement on the bases of the net exposure
= are allocated ta the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of
each of the individual instruments in the portfaiio,

The fair value of a financial liability with a dernand feature (e.g. a demand depasits} is not less than
the amount payable an demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be
required to be paid,

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reparting
periad during which the change has occurred.

viii.  Impairment

The Bank recogrises loss allowances for ECL on the following Rnancial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

— financial assets that are debt instruments;
— financial guarantee cantracts issued; and
— finance cemmitments ssued.

Mo impairment loss is recognised on equity investments measured at FVOCL
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.8 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
viii. Impalrment (continued)

The Bank messures |oss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECL except for financial
instruments for which credit risk has not Increased significantly since initial recognition. For such
instruments loss allowances are measured as 12-months ECL.

12-month ECL are the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within the 12 moenths after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which 12-
manth ECL are recognised are referred to as 'Stage 1 financial instrumients’. Financial instruments
elipcated 1o Stage 1 have not undargone a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition
and are not oradit-impaired.

Lifetirme ECL are the ECL thak result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument or the maximum contractual period of exposure. Financial instruments for which
lifetime ECL are recognised but that are not credit-impaired are réferred to as 'Stage 2 finarcial
ingtrumants’, Fimarnckal instruments allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant
increase in cradit risk since initial recognition But are not credit-impaired.

Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognised and that are credit-impalred are referred
to as 'Stage 3 financial instruments’.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probabilty-wesghted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

—  financial assets that are not credit-impaired af the reporting date as the present value of all cash
shortfalls [i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash fiows that the Bank expects to recabve);

— fingncigl gssets that are credit-impaired ot the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows:

— undrawn fingnce commitmenis: as the present value of the difference bebween the contractunl cosh

flows that are due ta the Bank if the commitmment @5 drawn down and the cash Rows that the Gank
expechs fo repeive; ol

= financial guarantee condracts: the expected payments 1o reimburse the holder less ary amounts
that the Bank expects ta recaver.

When discounting future cash flows, the following discount rates are used:

- financial assets other than purchased or ariginated credit-impaired {POCI) financial assets: the
onginal effective profit rate or an approximation thereod,

— POCI assets: a credit-adjusted effective profit rate;

—  undrawn finance commitments: the effective profit rate, or an approximation thereof, that will
be applied to the financial asset resulting from the finance commitment; and

— financlal guarantee contracts issued: the rate that reflects the current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks that are specific to the cash fiows,
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4.8 Financial assets and financial habilities (continued)

will,

Impairment (continued)

Restruchured firancial assets

If thie termis of & finandial asset are renegotisted or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new anre due to financial difficulbes of the borrower {customer), then an assessment is meade
of whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measuraed as folkaws,

If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expectad cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash
shartfalis from the existing asset

If tha expacted restructuring will result in derecagnition of the existing asset, than the expected
fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial rsset at the
time. of its derecognition. This amaoundt s included in caloulating the cash shortfalls from the
existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the
rejporiing date using the arigingl effective profit rate if the existing financial asset,

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays
and payment torgiveness, Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgement of management. indicate that pavment will mast likely continue. These
restructured facilities are kept under continuous review.

The risk of default of such assets after modification |5 assessed at the reporting date and
compared with the risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the madification is
nat substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the origingl asset. The Bank menitors
the subsequent performance of modified assets. The Bank may determine that the credit risk
has significantly improved after restructuring, 5o that the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage
2 [Lifetirme ECL) to Stage 1 [12-month ECL). This is anly the case far assets which have perfarmed
i accardance with the new terms for six consecutive manths ar mora, The Bank cantinues to
maonitar if there is a subsequent significant increase in credit risk in relation 1o such assets
thraugh the use af specific information for modified assets,

Credit-impaired financial assets

Al each reporting date, the bank assesses whether fimandial assets carried -at amortised cost are
credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets), A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that hawe a detimental impact an the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have accurred.

Evidence that a fimancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following cbservable data:
2] g

significant financial difficulty of the bormower {custamer) or iIssuer;

a breach of contract such as & default or past due event;

the restructuring of a finance facility by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider
atherwiss;

it is becoming probable that the borrower (custorner) will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reqrgamisation; ar

e
the diseppearance of an active market for a security because an Lﬂﬁmeh
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4.8 Financlal assets and financial liabilities {continued)
viil. Impairment {continued)

Credit-impaired flnanciol assefs (continued)

A financing facility that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the berrower's
{custamer's) condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the
risk af not receiving contractual cash flaws has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. In addition, a financing facility provided Lo an individual customer that is
overdue for 30 days or mare is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of
default is different.

The Bank assigns floor rate {a minimum PD) based on Basel || framework for soversign debts since
there are no defaults in the past.

Far credit-impaired financial assats the effective profit rate is applied to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets {after deduction of the loss allowanca).

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCH) financial assets

FOCI financial assets are assets that are credit-impaired on initizl recegnition. For POCI assets,
Iifetime ECL are incorporated into the calculation of the effective profit rate on initial recognition.
Lonsequently, POCI assets do not carry an impairment allowance an intial recogniticn, The amount
recognised 35 a loss allowance subseguent to initial recognition is equal 1o the changes in lifetime
ECL since initial recognition of the asset

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

— fingncinl a5sets measured of amortised cost 83 a deducton from the gross carmving amount of
the assets,;
- finance commitments and financial guaraniee cantracts: generally, as a provision;

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position (continued)

— where g financial instrument inclades both o drown and an undiewn component, and the Bank
cannot identify the ECL on the finance commitment compenant separately fram thase on the
drawn component the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The
combined amaunt is presented a5 a deduction from the gross carmying amount of the drgwn
component, Any excess of the loss allowance aver the gross amount of the drawn component
|8 présented a5 8 provision




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (COMTIMUED)
4.8 Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
viil. Impairment (continued)
Write-off

Financing and debt securities are written off {either partially ar in full) when there is na reasonatle
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the
case when the Bank determines that the borrower {custamer does not have assets or sources of

incame that could generate sufficient cash flows to repey (pay) the amounts subject to the write-
off. This assessrment is carried out at the individual asset level,

Recaveries of amounts praviously written off are recognised when cash IS received and are included

in ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ In the staternent of profit or loss and other
comprehansive income.

Financial assets that ane written aff could till be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Bank's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial guarantee contracts held

The Bank assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an integral element of & financial
asset that is sccounted for 85 a component of that instrument or is a confract that is accounted far
separately, The factors that the Bank considers when making this assessment include whethar:

—  the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt instrument;

= the guarantee s required by laws and regulations that govern the contract of the debt
instrurment;

= the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in contemplation of the debt instrument;
and

— the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower (customer) ar another compary within the
borrower's {customer’s) group.

If the Bank determines that the guarantee i an integral element of the financial asset, then any
premium payable in cannection with the initial recognition of the financial asset is treated as a
transaction cost of acquiring it. The Bank considers the effect of the protection when measuring the
fair value of the cebt instrument and whien measuning ECL.

If the Bank determines that the guarantee is not an Integral element of the debt instrument, ther it
fRCOQNISEs @n asset representing amy prepayment of guarantes premium and a rght to
compersation for credit losses, A prepaid premium asset is recognised anly if the guaranteed
exposure neither (s credit-impaired nor has undergone a significant increase in credit sk when the
guarantee is acquired. These assets are recognised in ‘other assets’. The Bank presents gains or
Iosses on a compensation right in profit or loss in the line item 'impairment losses on financial
instrurments’.

i, Designation at fair value through profit or loss

On initial recognition, the Bank has designated certain financial assets as at FVTPL
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MALIMYES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (COMNTINUED)
4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

“Cash and cash equivalents’ include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central
banks and highly liquid financial assets with original maturitses of three months or less from the date
of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by
the bank in the management of its short-term commitmants,

Cash and cash eguivalents are carried at amartised cost in the statement of financial pesition.
4.10 Receivables from financing activities

‘Net receivables from financing activities’ caption in the statement of financigl position include:
The bank has the following recewabiles and balances from financing activities

(a) Murabahah financing

Murabahah financing consists of the cost and the profit margin of the bank which resulted fram
Murabahah {Sale) transactions and are stated net of deferred profit and provision for impairment.
Murabahah is 2 cost plus sale contract where the bank purchases the subject matter requested by
thie customer and sell |t ta the customer with a profit. Under the Murabahah contract, the bank is
liable to disclose the details of the cost including the direct expenses to the customer at the time of
sale. The sake price may be paid in lamp sum or in installments aver the agreed period. These
financing facilities are initially measured at fair value, Further the instruments are subsaquantly
measured at their amortised cost using the effective prafit method, since the instraments cary fixed
profit rates and are held-to-maturity.

{b) Commedity Murabahah financing

Commedity Murabahah is a popular term used in the market o imply & cantract of Bl al-Tawarmug.
The tarm Tawarrug generally implies a sake contract whereby a buer buys an asset from a seller

with deferred payment and subsequently sefls the asset to a third party on cash with a price less
than the deferred prce for the purpose of obiaiming cash.

{c) Istisma’ financing

Istisna' is-a sale contract between the ultimate buyer [Custamer) and the seiler (bank), whereby the
bank, based on an crder of the custamer, undertakes to constructprodece/'manufacture or
otherwise acquire the subject matter of the contract, sccording to the agreed specification and
daliver it to the customer for an agreed price on an agreed date. The method of settlament may be
agreed in advance, by instaliments or deferred ta a specific future time, Istisna’ contracts represent
the disbursements made either in advance, progressive as agreed in the confract against the subject
matter constructed/produced/manufactured/acquired for Istisna' project, plus income (profit)
racognised, less payment received from the customer as instailments, These financing facilties are
initiglly messured &t fair value. Further the instruments are subsequently measured at treir
amartisad cost using the effective profit methoed, since the instruments carry fixed prodit rates and
are held-to-maturity.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4.10 Receivables from financing activities [continued)
{d) Diminishing musharakah financing

Diminishing Musharakah is a form of partnership where both parties enter into a Musharakah
(partnership} contract to jointly acquire am asset. Subsequently, under a separate sale cantract, which
may be secured under a unilateral undertaking to purchase by the customer, ane party {customer)
buys the equity share [ownership units) of the other party (Bank) graduelly af cost arice until the
title 1o the asset is completely transferred to the customer. During the tenure of the facility, the
ownership units of the Bank will be leased out to the customer and the income af the Bank will be
callacted in the form of rentals. These financing facilities are initially measured at fair value, Further
the instruments are subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effectiva profit
methad, since the instruments carry fixed profit rates and are held-to-maturity.

{e) Education financing / |jarat-ul-Askhas

Education Financing is a faciiity provided by the Bank, under the concept of ljarat-ul-Askhas [Service
ljarah). It is a type of [jarah {leasing) contract in which the dnderying usafruct (manfa’ah) could be
in a form of work, effort, expertise, etc.

The Bank will provide the educational service [sesdice Larah) to the customer alter the Bank
purchases the educstional placement from the educational institutions. The senvice payment by the
customer is. made an menthly basis on an agreed tenure, These financing facifities are initially
measured at fair value, Further the instruments are subsequently measured at their amartised cost
using the effective profit method, since the instruments carmy fixed profit rates and are held-§o-
maturity.

if) Wakalah Bi Al-lstithmar

Wakalah Bi Al-lstithimar is an investment agency contract where & principal (Muwakkil} appainis an
agent (Wakil) to invest furds on their benalf, either with or withaut a fee. This arrangement is
commonly wsad in Islamic finance to facilitate Shariah-complant investments while ensuring proper
delegation of fund management

In this context, the Muwakkil refers to the bank, which provides funds wnder the Wakaiah contract
for investment in a busmess, The Wakil is an eligible customer who receives these funds and is
responsibla for utilizing them in accordance with the agreed-upon investment strategy. The Wakil
15 expected Lo manage the investment prudently and in compliance with Shariah principles, ensuring
that the funds are not used for prohibited (haram) activites




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.11 Investments in other financial instruments

Investments in other financial instruments’ caption in the statement of financial position include:
{a) Mudharabah

Mudharabah is a type of partrership far profit in which one partner provides the capital and
the ather partner contributes his labour. The profits are shared on pre-agreed prafit-sharing
ratics, The losses, if any, are borne by the fund provider. The profit retes of the instrument are
linked to the profit of the borrower |customer), and they vary with the variations in profit,
Mudharabah Instrurments are mandatorily measured at FVTPL with changes recognized
immediately in the statement of peofit or loss. The Mudharabab instrument fails the "SPep”
test due to variability in the profit earned, thus, irrespective of the business model test, the
instruments are classified at FYTPL The instruments are measured by adding actual profit
declared to the prncipal outstanding, Since the perod of the instrument i less than 12
rmanths, the future cash flow is not discounted to determing the Tair value,

Instruments measured al FYTPL are not subject ta impairment as ger IFRS 2, and are therefare
not impaired,

{b) Wakalah Bi Al-Isthithmar

"Wakalah Bi Al-Isthithmar® or “Investment agency” indicates appainting another person ta
irvest and grow ane's wealth, with or without a fes. In this struciure the Wakesl conducts
financial transactions through Commadity Murabaha and deploys bank’s funds an short-term
basis. The bank is remunerated through an indicative rate. The Wakalzh 8i Al-Isthithmar profit
rates does not vary from the indicative profit rate provided in the contract ard are Reld ta
maturity. Therefare, this meets the SPPY criteria and held to collect business model test, Hence,
Wakalah Bi Al-isthithmar treasury certificate is to be classified as a financial asset measured at
amartized cost,

4.12 Investments in equity securities

"Investmients in equity securities’ caption in the statement of financial position inchudes:

— enouity investment securities designated as at FYOCL

The Bank elacts to prasent changes in the fair value of [meestiments in equity instruments that are
not held far trading in OCI, The election is mada on an Instrument-by-instrument basis an initiat
recegnition and is irrevocable,

Fair value gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profit or loss and no
impeairment Is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless they
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case they are recognised
in OCI. Cumulative gains and losses recegnised in OCI are transferred to retained earnings on
disposal of aninvestrment
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK FLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (COMTINUED)
413 Deposits

Deposits are the Bank's main source of debt funding.

Deposits are initially messured st Fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs,
Subseguently, they are measured at their amortised cost using the effective prafit methad

Deposits comprise following products;
&) Current accounts

Current accounts are deposit accounts which offer customers a flexible way to manage their
veryday banking needs. This type of account = based on the Shari'ah concept of Qard ard does
not earn any prafit.

Salient features:

— nan- profit sharing

— flexible banking and. persanal services
— A minimum deposit amount

— cheque book is provided

b) Savings accounts

Savings sccourds are profit earning accounts which offer customers a way to share in MIB prafit
distributions by investing their savings in & Shari'ah compliant manner,

The Bank invests deposited funds and shares the profits between the bank and the customer based
on the bank's declared prafit ratio at the end of each month following the concept of Mudharabah,

Salient features

— prafit. sharing
— minimum deposit amaunt for indwiduals MYR 200 or USD 20
- prafit distributions avery six manths

b} General investment accounts

General investment accounts are profit earming accounts which offer customers a way 1o share in
Bank's profit distributions by investing their maney in a Shari'ah compliant manner based on
Mudharabah concept.

The Bank invests deposited funds and calculates the prafits between the bank and the customer
based on the bank's declared profit sharing ratio at the end of each month and paid an matunty
date.

Saliert features:

— prafit sharing

— profit distribution at maturity

— flexible investment periods from 3, & % and 12 manths ta 2, 3 and up to 5 years
— minimum depasit amount for customars MR 5,000 or USD 500
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {CONTINUED)
4.13 Deposits (comtinued)

b} Margin accounts

Margin accounts are wsuelly securlty deposit accounts held by the bank on Wakalgh, Kafalah ang
trade Murabahah based financing arrangements provided by the bank. These accounts are currently
structured as non- profit sharing accounts.

The Bank maintains margin accounts for the following services:

— brade murabaka
Wakalah LC

— shipping guarantees

— performance guarantees

= bid guarantees financing

4.14 Financial guarantees and finance commitments

'Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse
the halder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it s due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, ‘Finance commitments’ are firm commitrmgnts o
provide credit under pra-specified terms and conditions.

Financial guarantees issued or commitments to provide a fingnce at a Delow-market prafit rate ame
initiatly measured at fair value, Subsequently, they are measured as Tollows:

— at the highar of the [osg allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the amount initally
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumutative amount of income recognised |n accordance
with the principles of IFRS 15.

The Bank has issued nao finance commitment that are measured at FVTPL

Far other finance commitments:
— the Bank recognises loss allowance,

Liabilities arising fram financial guarantees and finance commitments are included within provisions.

4.15 Share capital and reserves
Crdinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as eguity. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from eguity.




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.16 Property and equipment

i, Recognition and measurement

Items of proparty and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accurmulated impalrment kosses

Cost includes expenditures that are diractly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost af
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working conditon for their intended ose, the costs of
dismartling and rermaving the ikems and restoring the site on whech they are located and capitalised
borrowing {funding) costs. Purchased scftware that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment s capitalised as part of that eguipment.

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
secounted for a5 separate items (major components) of property and equipment

Any gain or loss on dispasal of an item of property and equipment & determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amaunt of the item of property and equipment, and are
recognised nat within other income in the skatement of comprehensive income

ii. Subsegquent costs

The cast of replacing a part of an tem of property or equipment is recognisad in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embadied within the part will fleng fa
the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably.

ii. Subseguent costs (continued)

The carrying emaunt of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day sendcing of
property and equipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as Incurred

iii. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or whon no
future ecanomic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from derecegnition of
an item of property and equipment is included in the statement of comprehensive income when the
item is derecognisad.,

When replacement costs are recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property and
equipment, the remaining carmying amount of the replaced part is derecagnised. Major inspecticn
costs are capitalised. At each such capitalisation, the remaining carrying amaunt of the previous cost
of Inspections is derecognised.
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4,17  Property and equipment {continued)
iv. Depreciation

Depreciation is recogrised in the statement of comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over
the estmated useful lives of each part of an item of property and equipment since this reflects most

closely the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
The estimated useful lives for the praperty and equipment are as fallows:

Leasehold building Over the leaze period
Computer equipment 4 Years

Furnitureand fittings 5 Years

Office equiprment & Years

Machinery and equipment 10 Years

Mator vehicles 5 Years

WVault 10 ¥ears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date, A full
month's deprecation 1 provided in the month of intended use while, no deprecistion is provided
in the manth of disposal,

418 Intangible assets
i. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Bank are stated at cost less accumulated amortisaticn and
impairment lasses,

Expenditure on intarnally developed software s recognised as an asset when tha bank is able to
demonstrate, that the product iz technically feasible, its intention and ability to completg the
development and use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits and that
it can refiably measure the costs (o complete the development. The capltalised costs of imerrally
developed software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software, and are
armortised over iis useful life. Infernally develop software s stated ab capitalised cost [ess
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitaiised only when it increases the futureé economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when incLerred,

iii. Derecognition of intangible assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use, The gain or loss arissng from derecognition of an item
af intangible asset is included in the statement of comprehensive incame when the item is
derecognised.




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION [CONTINUED)
4.18 Intangible assets (continued)

iv. Amortisation

Arartisation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income an # straight-line basis over the
estmated usehul lives of assets unless such lives are indefinite. The estimated useful lives estimated
by the Bank are as follows:

Computer software & Years
Core banking and database software 7 Years

4.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

At sach reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets [other than
deferred tax assets) to detarmine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, them the asset's recoverable amount is estimatad.

Far Impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that gererates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash infiows of other assets ar
Cols,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs 1o sell, Wahue in use is based on the estimated futune cash Aows, discounted to
their present valle using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assedsmaents of the tme
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

A impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amourit of anassel or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impasrment losses, f any, are recaognised in the staternent of comprenensive
incame,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carmyong amaunt does not exceed
the carnving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, I ro
impairment loss had been recognised.

4.20 Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benafits will
be required to settle the obligatian,

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refiects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where agpropriate, the risks specific to
the liability.

& provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting it obligations under the
contract. The provision |& moasured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
termineting the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a
arovision is established, the Bank recognises any impairment |oss on the assets associated with that
contract.

B RTT  —
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
4.21 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are axpensed as the related service s provided, A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay

this amaunt as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
rediakly.

4.22 Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided and recognised as personnel expenses in profit or loss Prepaid contributions are
recoqnised 28 an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Bank has enrolled its employees in the Maldives Retirement Pension Scheme ['MRPS") with effect
from 07* May 2011 based on the Regulation on Maldives Retirement Pension Scheme published by
the Government of Maldives. The Bank deducts 7% from each employes’s pensionable wages on
behalf of the employees between 16 and 65 years and makes payment w0 Maldives Pension
Adminitration Office (MPACY The Bank contributes to the Retirerment Pension Scheme at the rate
of 7% on pensionable wages,

423 Operating expenses

All operating expenses incurred in the running of the Bank and in maintaining the capital assets ina
state of efficiency has been changed to the profit or loss in arriving at profits or loss for the
pericd Expenses incumed for the purpose of acguiring, expanding orimproving assets of a permanent
nature by means of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of increasing the eaming
capacity of the Bank have been treated as capital expenses.

4,24 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, The basic and diluted EPS are the
same for the Bank

4.25 Segment reporting

An aperating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenuss and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses relating to transactions
with any of the Bank's other components, whose operating results are regulasly reviewed by the
Bank's chief operating decision maker ("COOM®) to make decisions about resources 1o be allocated
1o the segment and assess its performance, and far which discrete financial information is available,

Segment results that are reported to the Bank's CEQ (being the CODM) include dems that are
directly attributable to a segment as well 25 those that can be allocated on 3 reascnable basis.
Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses and tax assels and

liabilities
ua.'-:" e F'ar.rnf_. "a\
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT MOT YET ADOPTED

A number of new standards zre effective for annual pericds beginning after 1% January 2024 and
earller appiication is permitted; howaver, the Bank has not garly adopted the new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements,

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact
on the Bank's financial statements.

= Amendments ta |AS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2025)

— Amendments o the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instraments — Amendments to
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026)

— IFRS 13 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures {effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027)

= [FRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (effective for annual pericds
beginning on or after 1 January 2027)




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENOED 35T DECEMBER 2024

5 OPERATING SEGMENT

(&) Basis for sagmentation

The bank has the follewing thren sirategle divisians, which are repotable segmants. These divisions offer diffemnt

products and sardcas, end are managed separataly based on the bank's manegemant and inlemal raparting
slruciune,

Reporable segrents Crperatiana
Caraomtn banking Recalveale from financing achivilies, deposits and cihar bensaclions and balances
with corpadale customers and ralads cusbomers
Card ang alecironic Issuing camd Bnd managing POS, ATH internet barkong sarvices & mabile Eanhking
barking BEsyices

Funding and centralsed risk: managemant scivites hrough borrowings [fundings),
Traasury invasting In securtion and irvesting in liguld sssets such &% shor term plasements
and gowarnment sacusiliss.

The bank's Managemeanl Committes: reviews intarnal managameant reports froem ach divigkan at least manthly,
() Information about ropordabie sogments
Informasan related o sach reperiale BEmEnt i sel cul belaw. Segmant prafit bators tax, 88 induded o Mlermal

management mpans eviewad by e bank's Management Commites, 5 ussd o messure performance because

managament pebeves ihal (ke infarmabon &= the most relevant in evaluating lhe mesults o the respacive
ssamants; Wnler-segmend pdicing Is dateminad an an arm's lengih besis,

Corporate and :T:zdn_:::: Treasury Toudsl
rifail Banking Gankisn
MR MVR WIVA Pl Wi

For the year ended 31" December 7024
Ingame fram financing activities Al 40 513 - - 5OB, 348,633
Predil pald on cuslorrsr acoaums 1130642 481} 7 = (130542, 451
Med profit earmod fram financing activitios 468,706,142 - f 458,706,142
Fea mnd D'l'll'l"ll'l'l_lllf-l:l“ ncoma T2 198425 T3 340 855 - 146 540,120
Fea andl commisson axpanss {1,788 554  [31.210.868) - {32869 411
Mot few and commission Imcome TO410,919 A2 420,796 s 112,540,707
Foreign a¥changa gain (L EHR Rl ] — c 1051, 170)
Dinidand iIncome - - 5001, 000 £.001.000
Mat ncoma from oihar financial inairumenta = - 123, 108,004 123 108,004
Tatal eparating Ingome S39097 B33 42 120,76 128,108,004 70, 256 801
Met rpeinTant lasses o financtal sesals (00 548 TRA) - {ITBADZ) (30025 T8E}
Parsanngi casis (132 4430807 (16 485.868) (6,201, 144) {556,130, 103}
Ganaral and adminsirative axpansag {BA403 8471 (16.EA1 46D) 15443850) {110,528.836)
DOepreciatian and amarisation (2 05 303 |E.355.ﬂ?'2] 49%.318) (43 788.08E)

Todal operating axpanses imgiuging

sl s (285,444, 783) (42422810) [12,504,714) {340,372.287)

Prafil el x 363,884,396
Icome fax EE&H#.'IDE'J
Profit for the yaar -4
Crher comprehenshee (ncame, nel of kax 10,878 003

Todal comprehensive incoms

\



MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLO

HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBEER 2024
& OPERATING SEQGMENT

{B) Infarmalion about repartable sagmanis (continued)

Corgorate and o or0 and Fomasiry Tl
ratall banking alagirenic
banking
MVR VR Mva MVR

For tha pear ended 31" Dacsmber 2023
Incaree from financing ackvilios 401,784,553 - - 404,753,630
Proft paid on customer acoaunts STTA4E8. 213 - - I,T:'.-'fErH.E"Iﬂ
Het profil sarned from financing activitios 24,205,020 - - 124,135 A3
Fee and cormmisaicn inooma 50,139,181 24887 018 - TR A2 108
Fea and commisaion srpensa _ {70 B, {12.720,104) = 113,450,824}
Ml Tee and commissian incamo £0,354,381 13,266,514 - £1,631,275
Fankign mochanga gain J65ATE ‘ L I8 8T
Dividard noome . - 4735 400 o, 720400
Mgt inGame from ather Tnandal ingrumeris - - B4 B01 086 8,50 028
Tatal coerating Incama 47,066,858 12,206,014 83,337.498 478,560,266
Wt impalment losses on Snancial aesals {23048, B20) 4 (AEATE) (23,097,595
Paraonnel cosis {BE.T50.742) (14,104, 123 (4,728 286 {115,553, 735]
Hanarel and adminisiraive axoansas {54 228, 330) {10,207 336) EanTn (67,824,287
Depraciplion and armarisabon {20020, BOE) 15,844, 107] (485 428) [38,392,343]
Talsd sparating exponses Including
\mpalrment proveslon 202,067,610} 131,208, 866) |B.E56,205) [E41,818,481)
Prafi Bafore tax 233,740,608
irwcome b IE7.290.773)
Prali far the yaar 178,530,033
Oifer comprehansive inceme. fal of fax 7,800,000
Total comprehensive incame 1684, 330,033

Corporgls Snd Card and Traauusy Todal

retndl banking alactronie

banking

A8 at 31" December 2024 MVR MAR MVE MR
Assals
Cash and balancas with anar banka A48 138 438 g - 415, 135,436
balances with Maldivas Momelory Guthoriy 1820234, 33 - 1H20, 204, 21
Chus fram banks = B 155882 318 153 252 1148
Invagimenrts in equily seciritias - 127000000 127 000,000
Inyaciments n aiher finandal instrumems - 2 05T 5T e 2, B8 By 108
Mt recaivakies Tham frdnang activbes B 744 456, 152 F : 5,748 458 162
Fropety and agilpmant 30,E30 437 27 446250 - 110 384 BRT
Fight-pl-uss pasala 05 415,491 15 55 558 4070428 105,505 274
Infangble assais G ERD A0S 7 394 201 - 12,014 B2T
Cehar acssis 261,408 112 B - 201 404,342
Diafemad Bx agsel {unilocansd) - - - 5020273
Total assatn 8,229,154, 515 48,500,008  3162830,143 11,482,404 808




MALDIVES: ISLAMIC BANK PLG
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMORD 38T DECEMEER: 534

5 OPERATING SEGMENT
[k} Information sbout reporinble segiments {Cantinssd)

Curd and

Coeporate and glactromic Treas Todal

reiall banking Banking uny
As at 11" Decombar 2024 |Continuad) TR VR MYR MWR.
Linbditics
Camlonnem” acoaunts B537 012,884 £ s 127,002 881
Duam 10 hanks ' F55 304 104 855,304 13
Provdision 2,051,072 - - 3,087 972
Curmnt tar lixhity (unaliocated) - - - &4 TR E4T
Lenss labitios M1, 753,722 15,608 427 307,708 E5 550840
Tt llabifies 71,835 420 3,178,184 TEO0 B4
Tatal Halsligles 5,268,687, 034 12,866,518 BER445.838  10.310,743,124

Corparnbe and Card ang Treasieny Totnl

medall banking ploctranic

By

és ml 11" Docombor 2023 Ve Vi VR MVA
fasats
C&ah and balanoes with aller banks A 158351, 198 T : 418,351,118
Halanoas with Makdhes Momedany dilhedity G228D,143 - 824,280 143
invesimares in aguily sscurbes E 112 500,000 112,806,200
Invosimeres in other fiansal insrumonis - - 2,277,083, 863 ZETT 081856
Net rcateablss from financing nchulcs 4,108,704, 658 z - d, 105, o4 458
Propery and sopsipsen| E JEren e 77,448 250 ” 21,07R54T
Right-of-use agseis 94,004 521 16,68 G523 4407 154 115,066,753
Inangtia asssts B,543 431 2,344 204 = 11,282 825
Crihar s3sals 176,277 600 - = 176, 5TT 800
Defeerad tux aas8| (wnnfocaled) . = & 105,A7%
Taotal aescts 5,780,278, 650 B 420 24 2,083,95E,274 B, 234 BB0, 314
Liabilises
Cusiamers’ aLcounes 6,337 .HTE 141 - - 6,007 475,381
Chis 1o barks. - 258,051 574 258,051 674
Pravesion gl |2 e [ 1= - = T.09T 4549
Carrienl |ax Sabifly |unaliocatad) . - . a9, 580,180
Ligsasa: linhiifes 71,780,540 15 558 427 3,078 Tas 0, 588 057
Oihes iabikties 3,186,882 435 238 . 73,621,800
Total liabilities B, 099 861,342 16,121 658 261,120,370 T.300,773,671




MALDIVES [SLAMIC BANK PLC

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ETATEMENTS [CONTINLED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 1157 DECEMBER 2024

T

|

1.2

8.1

CASH AND BALAMCES WITH OTHER BANHS 2z4 2023
VR MR
Caahiin hand {Mota 7.1) 27 A5 299  1ETATRING
Batances with edher banks Nt 7.2) 144,810,000 342 656,800
I b it i Y
51 238 419801032
Liss: Impsirment silowance on balancos wilh ofer banis 1237 B0, (470,913
ash And balarces with ofar Banke AS13E436 478,361,195
Cash in hand
024 i)
Forelgn Exchange Comying Farign Exchange Carrying
CUITRATY rln amaenk ERifTRNCY raia &iTea et
=0 B.532 TET 15.368 138,208 083 4 0BG4a5E 16,385 B2 670
MR & B e ] : = 104,158 631
Total 271 500,205 167 1720
Basances wiih other banks
2024 2023
Fareign  Ewchange Elrr,llnu Forelgn Exchapge Carrying
curman ey rate amount CUmSALY rate Ak
Habit American Bank (S0} 1.580.38% 18383 Z4 498411  F245054 15308 138092802
S Bani Limitod (LSO 504, 248 15385 7,760,086 250,54 15305 4008 TE2
Bank of Makdrves PLG {LES0) 102,061 15385 1,871,238 255,014 16395 3041,342
Hank of Maldives PLE {MVR] . E 4,340,074 + - 2318845
State Bank af India (US0D) 2R3 541 18 305 A, )55 BT EY DAt 15385 A4 367 498
Suate Bank of Incia (MYRY - . BT BT = 538,754
Amana Bank PLEC {LIST) 36,088 18 305 S40.204 &3.300 16385 21,0835
Masheg Bark (USD) ERB4 B4 15305 BOASTATS 7121731 15385 _ 100638084
Total 21,1000 LIS 00

The bank has It Noslio sccounts s Habb American Bank - Mew Yok (HA5) and Mashess Bank - Dubal, This accoun|
Ip ugad Lo faciilabe ila foreign remiiance and rade tnanss activities

2024 2023

eV tave
Caen and Balances wilh barics 2= por the statament of ingncisl positian 41537225 19831032
Add: Esfanco with MM in aesads of mivimu reserve requiremeant Tr5 824057 - PAODODAIR
Cath and cash sguivalanis as per fhe cash fioe stabeman) 1192 380164 673831 850
BAl AMCES WITH MALDIVES MONETARY ALUTHORITY 2024 2023

MR MR
Minimum Fasane Requreman (MRR] (Mol 8.1} B44 0G40 B FT93IE
Balance i Excess of MRR with M0 [Mote 8.2 TS H24 B2 2A0.000 818
Todal 1|E!'t|33-1 a3 BE1 .:."BEII'ME-

Minimem Reserve Requiremeni "MRER"

&g pes the reguiations of the Maldives Monalary Ausharily {the "W84%5, the bank & reguded 10 meirmain 8 reeene deposl
basod on 10% for WA and 10% for USD of 14 days avavage of e Cuslomers” deposis with e bk exduding
inlaroank dagedils of ol Bardas in Maldives and leter of credit margin depeails. Tha bark Ras mamlained ts minknum
rakarye feguirsmenl ascording & e regulstons Beued by the MA. Thess deposits are not avalable for the bank's day
bo-day operations.

-

Mole", Maldives



MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 20324

B2 Balance in excess to minimum rasane requiramant

The balance in excass of MRR does not carry & j
y oy resurm and those funds will be ublised for poeratiaral, falura
financing and invastmerd aclivilies of the bank

3. DUEFROM BANKS 2024 2023
Vakalah faciity 15:1!;:.9?5 = -
Lass: Impairnen aliowarea on balances dun fram banks (34.858) .
Duig Ifam banks 153,882 3118 -
The Wakalah facilily represanin 5 placament made an 261k Dacsmber 35 valth Bank af Maldives for 8 1anure
af 3 menihe

18 INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES 024 23

MYR MVR
Irvestment escurities designated at FVOCT - (Nale 10.1) 127003000 112,500,000

127 000 0630 19 500000
——— i i e————

101 Investment securities designated at FY QS - equity investments

The bank designatod sangin ifvestments shawn in the lolowing lible as equity saouritiss 81 FVOCL The
FWOGH designation was made because the invastmenta Bre expeciad o be held for tha long-berm for sirategic
purposns.

Falr valuse as at Dividand Fair valua as at Cilwidernd

31 Decamber Incoma 1 Decamber InEama
2024 recognised for 202¥ recognised for
the year 2024 tha year 2023
MVR MR MVR MV
Inuestm=nd in equity shams - Donsdog
Maidives PLC 110,800,000 LR BT 500,000 AL oDO
Investment in equity shanes - Dhivehi
Raieyge Gulhun PLC 18,804,660 T50,000 15,000,000 Ti4.400
L0000, STOTU0D _TiZE00000 __ ATIEAT
Dindveni
Goredoo i Tatal

Raajjeyge
Maldives PLC Guihun PLE

Asat 17 January 2023 81, 00000 11,100,000 102, 1040, B30

'chilﬂﬂﬂ in‘trm fair vaiue diefing tha waar &, 800 000 3,800,000 A0, 40, D0
Asat 31" Decamoer 2023 b A et S, 000000 2,500,500
T
A a1 darvary 2024 a7 500,007 15,000.000 112 500,000
Charge in the fair vaius during the year 13,0000000 1,5000000 14,500,040
&g gt 31" Decamiper 2024 110,500,000 115,500 000 127,000, b0

Equfty Invesimen! sacicliles designated at FWOC] are the invesivards in the quated shares af Dhivehi
Rafeyge Guthun PLC (Ohisagul and Oorsdon Maldves PLC (Dosadoo). The wvestmend 8t Dhiraagu
somprigad of 100,000 shares wih rominal vaiie of MYR 2.5 which wane puichased al VR B0 par shaee, A
il 31l Daceenbar 2024, ihe shares ware valwed ol MYR 165 sach (2023 MVRE 160} The imeastment o
Ooredos comprised.af 1,300,000 shaes wilth nemiral value af MYR 1 which wee ouchased & MYR 30 per
thifm. The shanes weis valusd at (MR B5 sach a8 28 31 s Decembar 2034 (2025 MVR T4).

Ha statepc imvestmants wang disposed off durdng 2024, ard fherma were no transfers of any cumulative gain ar

ioss wihin eguity mlaing o these investments.
// -D;"Jl‘ll.ﬂ Pa
/ gy
\ 5
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

HOTES TO THE FINANGCLAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 38T DECEMBER 2024

0 INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES [CONTINUED)
0.2 Falr value resarve

Aaal 1" Jeruany

Recogniged ! (reversall ouring ihe yaar

Dedarrsd fax on Jrecagrition) ! reversal during the year
A5 gl 31" Dacarbar

11 INVESTMENTS 8 OTHER FINANGCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Investmenis mandatoiily measured &1 FVTRL (Rea 11,1)
Irrvestmenss messured & amarised cost dbate 11.2)
Less: Impalnmant o slewanoe an athar finassiad insrumarss [Mole 112

114 Investrents in cther financial [rstruments mandatarily measurod as EVTRL

1024 2023
MVR MYR
45,125,000 41,328,000
14,580,000 10,405,000
(3, 6625, 000) (2,800,000
£0,000,000 43,125,000
1024 2023
WA MyE
121,862,728 120,501 238
2 776,519,580 215687371
34 B8 (281, 143)
2807 ,087 266 2,277,083 Bag

Invasiments in ather inandial redrumess inclide YWakslah and Mudharaban placamanls whane tha mehum is irked B e
oroft garecaied by the Inwesios. Sinca this crijeia dags not mast ks reduirement of 8PP ag per ihe 'IFRS & - Fnencial

Inslrumenis’, ihess mslrumenis kave boen reclRes®ed a5 FYTPL
Inwastod

InVERETENI Carrasl Coumtry  Maturity 2024 X023
currency ____ lype MV MVR
lsfamic Tmasury Bill MYR  Musharabah Maidivas 08 Caya 121,682, 728 120,501,238
121682, 728 190,501,225
1.2 Invostments messured Al smonised cost
o St invgsted  Condract Gounfry  Maturity 2024 1023
cUrrBAGY typa MR MYR
islamic Treasury Bils MR Tmﬁlﬂ' A Makdiees 28364 days 1731242 888 13953701 524
Chemight Cepost Commodity )
Fachity MYR Kl Wakdivas 468183 111 {116,276 108
E:::'.ﬁ,l- s MR ELBF Makdives 3 yeam PR4. 221 B9 400,385,160
Wakalah B Al
Islamic Treasury Bils usn i Minidhves 1 ypar 12202 164 24,500 531
2T 018 658 2 156873771
Impairment ks sliowancs on YWakalah B Altsthithmaor Treasuey Bifls (5082228 (278 400
Immrment ioss alcwance on Commodity Murabahah Overmighl Depoail Facility (42532 {18 51
Impalrment loss alicwanco (534,530 [Ear 143)
it Invasimants measwed at amoriieas Gost Eﬂ]ﬁ? Jae 2277 0B 558
12 NET RECEIWABLES FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 024 2023
MIVR _tve
Recakenies from francing acivilles messured al smerlised cosk (Nohe 1213 o801 268 f87 4,717, 733.015
Less: Impsrmen leas slowance (Rate 12.1) (146502 838 (114,950,455
Mt feceivabilas fram francing acthities G724 456 182 4 105,754,550

&3
oiaiia Parinery
( ) o |
Maig" Ma]dj-‘ﬁa}/

_—_\_\_‘__
pioilie Parfng

S
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MALDOWVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL ETATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 5T DECEMBER 2034

12 KET RECEIVASLES FROM FINANCING ACTIVTIES
12.1 Rocekabing from fifdssng acthibies measined at amartisad cost 2024 2039
MR MR
Dimiriering Mushassiea IO ETE IR
M.rataha 1RINFA0022 1 BIESET a0
Istiana 107256657 1314BLTTT
iAekaia BIA Hatrethmar o4 150,58 g
Tammmig BOS 13 550 B3,080.244
l'l'l|-|.l-m|'ll: 3 ; 1 451
Total gross recaivabis fom fnancing aciivitios __B.Ba1 6B ST AT
ImpETR. s Alowancg o7 indviduslly a3iessed clplimes {34,841, 194} {40,448, 8380
Impeinman ke algemnce o ooy ddasseed clalomens [82, 351,654 11821810
Talal loss sllcwance [ 46, BOJ, Allh) (11,568 aE)
fet recedvanles Irem financing activitias 5Tae ﬂll__-g A 105 T84 BEG
2.8 Movemuntin impalrmant allowanes Aecewabien Fimancial Diie i Flacemonis
from annpin ot e with asher Tl
financing  amertied coat banke
MWS WVR MVA AVR
As i 1t January 2023 a_;l,m_"uu_zﬂ BT - £T0, 554 BE 476 EER
| kmenl DAPETS RS MeCogiibed d
trn:‘-.-u-ww hu.-'u:.::-u thos mpn::ur: 14,300,778 18.9m - {3411 18112844
As al, 3ist December 2021 11'“%@ i a 470 01 ”;;E 12
As gl st January 2024 151, B68 450 Erﬁ' : .uhfi' 112, rae.8na
el [0l TR E
:legw!urm”um kel 34,834 348 340 74T 34 A58 (242,110} 4,070,842
A3 at 3si Decambar 23340 148, B 05 ﬁﬂﬁ HEE Em 1;E: i il:l 164
121 Recaivebles from finencing actlviles measured # gmorised cost
E02d 2023
ECL Mat carrying Mt camying
Oirgres amoaint ot e Gives amownt  ECL allowanse el
BVH WVR MvA VR MR
Ciminiahing Mushamka X, 006 257 660 4441 JEEZ A48 2375045580 RO E) £ A6T 857 5BS
Murahana 1.833. 240,022 112,148 843 1.7 051578 18108157580 83,340,980 1,534 017,683
Imisra’ 107 Ea.nnr 1,208,645 108,043 052 131 484, TT1 1 23z 083 120,253 663
‘aksln [ Al Isth imar 40, 30 955 1,58 48,385 447 5 ' 5
Tirvareg 400,113,850 - BOA, 113850 53,000 28 - U3 160 2o
Educalion Tnancig 3 - -] 1,451 4 1481
Total grose recovabln 5381 =8 QHT TS0 800 B rad AR 102 AT TELME 118 D82 558 4 108 TEd BN
124  Mat irepaimmenl leas on finencisl asses 2024 2023
R MYFR
Imissirmmend. recagnieed dunng the year Ior on balanns shial AERORLTE (ol 12.7) 34 BT BAR 18,397 544
Imeairmnt recag nised | (seradrsadh cunng the year for off nalance sheet axpegiurs {Nee 19) 545 AR 5 Ta0ne
125  Signifgant chasges o the gross carniing amosint

Tt fodowng talbie peovidas an aplarabios ef hiw sigrifeact changes in the gross carnng amourkt of finarcial ineneeens durieg the

RRMoE coninbged 10 chirges in 088 afiowanoe.

204 Hoka
IR Increang ¢ (S aisa) Impacs increaan ! (decianse}
1 Smga Stage 1 Erage 1 Stage 2 Stagm 4
Murahsha #3165 2 1,406 E74 5,278 3d7 11,824 828 1,283,052 e E0d B0y
Ixisra’ - - - (2508 . .
Diminis®ing Mushamish 107 g | 700, By B.31,17T2 1 433 62& 3,12 -
Tewarug 54T AN 1,250,780 B4G.617 1, B “ -
Wnicali Bi Bl liharme %530 - - - . .
11073, 853 15556 501 12,574,131 18 Fd15 11T B2 12 0.
Commitmenis Pmﬂ 1,785 0501
*
. _i.;l:lll.T“E I-'Ia;rh_\_eh
. )
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUELD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T DECEMBER 2024
id4  RIGHT-OF-UBE ASSETS
Righi-af-usa essals relate in lesed properiias (hat do nal mesd the defirtica of nvestman progerty

Ciosl

&= al 1 Jarmary

fckdilians during the pear
Madificatiors dusing the year
A5 at 31" Dasersber

Accumulatad depreciation

A5 ai 1" Jenuarny

Depreciation charged dunng the year (Mobe 333
Terminations durrg e wear

&g af 31" Desamber

Het carmying amaunt
INTANGIELE ASSETS
&8 al 31%l Decombar 2024

Cosi

Az al 188 January 2024

Addiliana during the pear

Tranesarred from capital work-mn-prograss
A5 al 318l Dacarmber 2024

fAccumulated ameization

Az al 8L Jaruary 2024
fmorization for tha vear (Nole 3|
Az & el Decernber 2024

Mat carrylng amount &2 at 31" Docomber 2024
As ai 3151 Decambar 2023

Cost

As ol ist Januany 2023

Addions dunng the year

Vi -l chirireg v year

Tianafaired rom capltal work-4n-prograss
As at 115t Deceminer 2023
fooumulated amodtization

A5 al 45t January 2023

Amorization for the wear {(Mobe 33)

fs al 115l December 3033

Pal carrying amownt &8 al 3181 Decambor 2023

20aa 2023

MVR MYR
172231120 166,790,508
2,026.028 ?.382 20
340,246 (3,842 005)
176,567,381  172.231.120
ST1B5330 43061285
15,406 570 14,162,563
= {384, 114)
__ TasM ;7 57,165,380

108,395 474 115,065 782

Cora banking Ot Cagital Tatal
and databiese computer wark in
saftwars faftware Drograss
MY VR MVE WY
2,087 883 R e L 1,128 238 44 015 148
- 1,715,628 5,040887 5§ 20 5L
— 1,218,802 i1,315.882] -
20,057 363 25269 8048 4 HQa a3 50,221, 831
18,243 220 13,7715 274 - 32 722404
17 950 d4 BES 651 - 5,484 510
18,551 1B0 18 845 624 - 38,207 104
AHE TOE 6615, 681 £ 00g 24873 12,014,527
Care barking other Capital “Tatal
and databpen  sompuaies work in
sofhwara softwars prograes
NTYR MWR NVR
IO05T.EES 10,227 161 1,683,308 39,568,372
- 170053, 4 814 T3¥ 4 445 58
: : (399 5] {3288 081)
. 4. 7T0.BET |4, 770,887 -
_Z005THES _ 73A0vEes 1129238 440111
18,200 005 10,185,028 = 28,385,034
TA321S  3S445 . 4337 A0
1893220 13779874 - AT2R4Nd
1,114 883 B048,TE1 1,128,238 11,292 623

15,1 Softwane work-in-progress mainly Siclodes payments made by the bank for procuring scftwane miating 1o carg-schema

mmaementainn

TH.2 Thans wars ne reslistana on (ke (fs af 1he infengible Aeeéts of (he BAnk a2 &% tha repommg date. Furhar. therm wame

v Hems placked as securities for labites




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FQOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMSER 2024

18§ QOTHER ASSETS

2024 2023

MYR MVR
Refundabis deposils 18,4497 756 13,626,875
Prepaymants 8,301,847 8,900,151
Advanca paymenis jainst financng sssals (Holo 16 1} 174,258 586 136,700,038
Ahes recoivabies 50,3408 003 7,02 536
EE1|-1IJ-I!I.31E 1.'|"E|3'|'T|Ei'.'ll?

161 Advance payments againsl fnancirg essals comprisad af the nowance peymenls mace to suppliare for the
produrement of goods undar Trade and Uiala consumear financing fnckitins.

17 CUSTOMERS® ACCOUNTS 2024 2023

MVER NV R
LCurrenl Bocounts 2014385323 1,678,008, 1048
Sawings accounis 4,726,920 876 7,791,075.051
TEI'rr'l_l:Ill:-:IBi‘rB 2524 417,000 2,288, 330,530
kargin nl;l:l:.l_.mtu 40 773,101 3o 168 403
Oiher deposis 111,515,843 448,786 209
T O1LBR]
9,127 072 HE EIH-E?,E]'H-.JM
12 DUE TO BAMKS AND OTHER FINAMCIAL IMSTITUTIONS 0% 2023
MYR MVE
Wakalah Pacemant iy BML, Malgives [MNoba 18.1) B43.021.478 297 042 486
‘Wakalah Pmsameant by MMA (Male 18.2) 1711 442 859 a
tiaenic Comporation for e Desalopeern of privale sector (G0 (Mot 18.3) - %1,&:&.2&3
H55, 454, AG1.674
T

18,1 [heing the year, the Bar as erdered n to furthear Wakasa arrangemante #ilh Bank o Makdives ("BML* The
Bank has been appeinted as agenl of the BML for investing thelr funds and she Bank i aitherized b srder inio
Sharlah complian| ransacions an aeholf of BML,

18.2 During the yaar, fhe Bark has ariered in to Wakala grangaments vwith Makdives Monetary Autority (WIMS°], The
Bank nag bean Bppoinled a: sgent of MMA for invesSng thelr funcs ead 1ha Bank & aulhordzed b enter nio
Enariah compliani ransacliors an behall of MKA

18,3 The Comimedity Murabaha Faciily freen tha Iamic Corporation lor lhe Desslopment of private secior. (100°) was
Lilly setiied during the peaar.

18 PROVISIONS 2024 2023

MVR MYVA
As el 1" Jarusry 7,097 459 3,312,408
Pronislon {revarsed) { mada ouring tha yaar - Undraen enedl faditieg 4 D45 A8T) 3,785,051
Asg 8L 317 Decembar 3,089 872 057 455

The ahoe provigian epasems ibhe ECL proviion recognized by the Bank far undrien credi taciitios

u:nﬂﬂ P:'lffrlpq

Mara I..'Eald.



MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLE

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 118T DECENSER 2024

M LEASE LIABILITIES

Tha Bank leasas ils head office premises, oranches, and ATH locations. The ieages typizally fum for @ panod
of 3 ta 25 years, wilh an oplion o renew the fease aftar that date.

Information aboul leases far which (ha Bank is & lossee is presanisd baiow,

2024 2023
iy R MR
m

A # 1" January S0056,067 95472681
Anl:l@l:m gunrg the year 2 036,004 T.3E2.820
Midifiaticrs dising the year 3210247 13,081, 349)
Financing expense on laase labiites 5.051,553 5272458
Payienls rmada during tha yeer (15305082} (14 480 503
A5 gt 31" Dacamiber H5 5608 849 B0 ESG 0T
Maturity analysis of undiseaunted cash flows as fallaws
Lass than ane yoar 17053355 15 7549, 02
Mare han ans vear 53 757 368 86,372,228

SansitviEy analysis of lease liabilities

Tha belew tsnle refiects the sarsibvity of ease Rabilifies as ai 315t Decernber 2024 (o reasonaby passioie
chianges in Mcremantsl Borrawing Rase (Incremensl Finencing Rals)

5% Ma EhunE +145

Loase iaoiiting 81,122 362 BS5,E58 BB A0 52 651
0.1 Amount recognisad in profit or loes

Financing expersa an nasa |labilties 5081 583 5272498

Amorizaticn of fighl of uas asas 15.dl:l5|5.'|'9 m
.2 Amount recegnised in statement of cagh flows 11,353,485 3.218.095

T

05 Extension options

3ame leadas of branches canlssn extansion oplicns exerciashle by 1ha Bank up (o (hrealfive yaars bafara he
end of Ihe non-Gancelable cankact period The Bark included ecansion cpdlans In leess agreemenis io
prowice cparalienal Nexibility and 1be management decided thal tha Bank is mest Bkedy 1o aserciss Dhe
ealargion opdkang. The lubara laass pavments resuled in an increase in loasa liabildy of MYR 11300277 a8

reaut of the grierskins =5 at 318t December 2024 (an &l 318l Decembar 2023 WVR 4,588,110}

3| QTHER LIABILITIES 024 2023

MYR NV R
Asruad saparsan 5845507 3 565,351
Fansion payatle 852,913 a79 887
Payvabie t9 auapliers 20,626,238 BA433 583
CashErs chegue 425150 553,693
Charity funds from finanging B34 84T 1007318
Rsfenbon on Istisna’ prajacts 434 440 431 440
Otviderad payabie 295351 465 482
Caher Gakilis=s® a5 481047 EBSBJ.IHE

i‘.'l.ﬁ'lm i

“Criher Hatilitias mainly include banws parabla ta stafl, clearng infer-bank ranafers, withbakling e payabla (o

MIRA and alkar fund-csaring accouafils.

45

;/f’ﬁ 1:-_13-"- Parp, e S
I/ L }F

Maldves _

—

"



MALDIVES IBLAMIC BANK PLC

MOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T DECEMBER 2024

a2
22

2

SHARE CAPITAL
Autharized share capiial 2024 2023
W R MVR
105,000,000 ardinany sheres of MYR 10 gach (2023: 100,000,040 ardinary
shamae o MUR 10 gach) 1|I:II}I.'.III.'.IIIEI.".'ID'!] rﬁ,gm,mn
lsswed and fully pald up share capital 2024 2023
Vahm Mo. of sharas Valug He, of sharos
MVEH MVR
Oirdingry sharas isaued bafone inibat puolic
afaring- g1 par 180,000,070  1E.000,007 180,000,070 18,000,007
Initial publc offering - at pat £E DO, 080 45 000 00
EfAna premiLm 112,500,000 PR 2. 500,000 i

57 SI00T0 22 800,007 337 500,070 #2500 007

18,000,007 ordinary shares of MR 10 each issued a1 par ang. 4 500,000 ardinary shares of MR 10 egey
issued al a premium of MYR 25 each (2023 18,000,007 ordinary ahares of MYE 10 sach fseued &l par and,
4 500000 erdinasy sharas of MYR 10 apch isswed at a premium of MVR 25 saeh)

Shareholidars 2024 2023

Mo, af gleames % Ma. of sharas B
Islamic Comporation for the Deyelopment of
e B vats Beckor T 425000 33 T 425,000 335
The Gavernmant af Maidivas &, 200 008 28% 8,300,000 2%
Maldaves Pansion Adminigizasion Offics 288370 1% 2,359,370 11%
fmana Takahsl Maidives Pic 1,B08 372 .1 1 30637% aﬂ.-a
Cshers 4 Bab AR 2% 4588 285
Tatal 22, 0007 100% 2. H oav EH

214 Dividends and vating rights

The hiolders of thae ardinary shams ame antitied o receive dividends ag declared fiom dime b §ma and are entitied
te voba @ per Arnkces of Associasion of the Bank

The Dank nas seciaed dividands of MYR &80 par shene, amountng to MR 655 250,020 dufirg the year ended

21" ocember 2024, During the yeer erded 31 Decmbes 2023 the bank decianed dividends of MVE 1.75 par
share, amaunting ta MYR 28 375 012,

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

The barik has slectod 1o recognise changas In the 18ir value of caraln imeastmants n squity sasurilies in 0G|
(Mate 103 These changas ars accumilabed within the FVOC] resere wilhin equity. Thea bank iransers sradnls
Frcems 2his resarve o ralained earnings when the relewant aquity securities are denesagnised

STATUTORY RESERVE

In-accordance with ths Maidives Banking Act Mo 243010 ! Pradential Regidatizn an Cephal Ageruasy (2015R-
166] Ixued By the Maldhves Manetary Authenty (TMAT), the bank akall aliocate. aiter taxes, &t lsaat 50% of s
mat dislriutable profits for the farmation of a capdal resarve ant® iha esarve 1o18ls 50% aof B8 minimum meguired
unimpaired pakl-up capital or asslgned capdal. Oince the resarve regches S0% of tha bank's minimum eguired
unimpaied paki-up capRal or eesigred capital, tha allocation shall not bo less than 28% of tha bank's nal
distnbutable prafit until the resarve totals an amourd egual ta tha Bank's minimum required uimpalned paid-up
capital o assigned capil. Tha bank may aof redwds its capital and She reserse accumulated i the manne:
described in fhe At Prudersial Reguiaticn ar In any ather manner wilhaud priar appreval of the MBS, The bank
nes not raneferrad any amounts 1o the stetusary rasare dunng the yaar andad 31 Desembar 2034,

Hawayar, the bank has (Fa stalulory ragarsa amounting ta MYR 150,020,000 a5 at 31 st Dacember 2024 and that
is an armeurt equal 1o e tank's minimum required essgned capital of MVE 150000000 s specified wmaar
eaciiong 12 and 13 of tha Maidives Banking act Ma. 242010




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

ROTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 7024

25

26.2

26,3

NON-CISTRIBUTABLE CAPITAL RESERVE

In accomence with the Maldives Monetary Aulbarky PMMA® guidaline an finanging resaivabie oes provisioning
(CH-BSDR0T7/), the Bark has orealnd B saparste resane 1o resard the differsnce in mpakment amawnls
proviced bebween IFRS provision and impakmend proviskon made i acoordance with MMA guideings (M
Prudantial Reguistion 20158188 Reguistion an Assot Clssafication. Proviskning and Suspansa of Prafi).

Total proviann for impairment in accondnnce with MMA gidelines wes highet than the SCL prevision. and ihens
was an addiconal amourt of WWR 1204 078 fransfarred fo v non-distribulesle capitaf raserve aa al 31st
December 2024 (315t Dacemiber 2023; raverna of MR TBET.201 fron the non-distnbulable capital resene).

2024 033
- MVR MYR

impairmend proviglon per MMA Prudantisl Regulabion as at 315t Decemiba: 167 257 0a5 138,174,157
Less: Impaimnant provision per IFRS 9 83 8l 31st Decemar (Mole 122 & 106) (148,854 777y {118,065 615}
Mon-distribulabie capkal reserve B8 51 318 Dacamnbar 17.402,318 16,105,242
MET PROFIT EARNED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2024 2023

MVR MR
Incoma from firancing activities (Mobs 26:1) ROS A4E 533 401, 783 843
Profi pald on cuslomer accoumts (Mole 26.2) (130642 867 {77,456 213)
et pralit frem financing activilias 450 TOE 142 324, 205 820
Inzama fram financing activities - meoasured at amartised cosi
Incama fram Educetion finanging B84 T.BE
Incoma from Muraheha 08 383 910 202,082 228
Incanme fram Istisna’ 12815873 14,131 8498
Inzama fram Daminishing Musharaks 280,870,576 T8, T40.187
N Tram Whakalah Bi Al-Isthdhmar __GadvEs 0 .
Income from financing activilies using the effective pratdit methed o704 Ta8 354 562 854
Ml Impact of modfeatian of fnandal assets measured at armadised cast (353,155 1,801,178

wMeka 25 .3)

Taotal Irceme from finance activities wsing the effective profit methad —PI A BAY  &017E3E3

Frofit pald on qusiomer gocounts & others - measured ot amortised cost

Gereral mvestmani accounts 45,155,901 45 843 503

Saulngs aceodnts A1 ADE 428 22,788 Ta3

Inter-bsank firancing 21,061,074 5255 C2T
130542 48" TTAE8.213

Het Iose arising from modificatian of financial assets measured at amortised cost

Tha bank has recognized addifional lbasas fram the modFicalion of financial assefs mapsusd at anorlized cosl
These lsses prmardy relahe 16 modihcalicns made 16 I'N!-'Ihul!.‘lu-:ll'lp arad rﬂﬂl:h-u-ddil‘q ol Fl'hunl:lrg facliliea.




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R THE ¥E4R ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2024

20 HET PROFIT EARMED FROM FIMANCIMG ASTIVITIES [CONTINUED)

26.3 Bet loss arisdng from modification of fnancinl assaks messured at smortsed eewt (Sontinued)

SRR Ly. ., A 083
Murshaha . Diminishing Toatal Murabiha  Dlminisking Total
Muyeharakahk Mutsharakah
amorined po3k o
dtriiviate TOBNERS  E3S13E7E 70,677,674 255017 1466061 11421078
A ——
Loas on modficaton @155 LI ECE  (3.051.3280 (10545 {883 B0 (574 245,
Lirmdnding eftact dormg tha yoear EB3 452 T4 TR 2808, 174 483 &75 2,307 580 2 775425
Fiet impact iz prodi or foas 3hade - THIDBT - 353,155 m‘g}n —_L3ia3ap m‘i—’ LT
T HET FEE AMD COMMISSE0M INCOME 2024 2023
VR YA
Feaun:l-:-mrru_n!n-l imcome (Hole 27.1) 145540, 120 TB 122 195
Fed g commisaion spersn [Mala 37.2) (329984430  [13,400 504
Hal fes and cemmissian reome V1250707 Bl EET'EEL
2 5 ;

7.9 Disaggrepatian of fes and commibss|on Incésma

In ihe feliwing 1abla, fae and commission incoms fram cantracis with cumiamars in the ssaoe of IFRS 15 (s dsaggrrgaled by
e e ol Bervices The tabla alss inclades o resonciiation &l (he gissggregabed fee and commission ircama wilh he Bank's
repafaiie sapments.

Corpossa png redall ATW card and oloeironic ot
= king banking 4

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 z023

WVH MYER MY MVA MYR MY R
BRrking sRrvdcak 3bA50 008 28370 810 = - 34,050 B3R 20,3708
Tracda financa kervicas 2,70 Tha BAy 344 - - i e v g4 211
Ramitanzas AOE0T B 0885180 - - 0 80T BT 20,880 160
ATM, POE, Fasa Het ard
Galway 3 - TaA40 850 D40AT DB T330095 24,587 018
Oiter loes and commagona Lx
inaiine 5821 - . . 5971 ¥

Total foe and commimsion incame: 72900425 50135 101 TRAM0855  S4SATDIE 4R S40121 TRAZR IS
Hom contracis with cusicmers

7.2 Fee apd commission expense
Fund trarmfer espanses 1,788 574 70820 3%, 210,833 12 T2 104 A7 a1l A3, 4590 534
1 7AA 514 TTOHI0 34 3 i0fem 13 75004 NI EEnATE 1345000

28 MWET FOREIGH EXCHANGE (LOS3GAIN 2034 20
MYR YR
et forsgn encrangs (o LsWiEin Ei 'Ii":l'I A0 2T
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

A
201

0.2

|

az

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS N EQUITY SECURITIES 2024 2023

. MYR MWVR
Dividend incoma froem Investmant messured at FVWOC 200,000 4. T35, a00
5,007,000 4 746,400

Tha dividend income repressnts the dividend recafusd during (ke year from: invegmenls In the gu [
Qhivehi Resjeype Gubun PLC [Dhirasgu™ ard Oceedos Maidiees PLD *Ooredon™. Tha I:iumdrulwi::rr‘;
includes, from Drikeagy, MVR 5,84 per shara as nal dividend for 2023 sad inferm dividerd of MyE 186 per
shase for 2024 (3023 Final of MVA 587 far 2082 and MVE 1568 par shere B intedm dividend of 2023), from
Doredan, MR 227 par share a5 the fnal daddend for 2023, (2023; fnnl divideno of MVE 304 for 2022}

NET INGOME FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Invostments in other financial instruments mandatorty meagurd st 2024 2023
FYTEL MYR MR
Mudharabah ircois mandalodly meagured at PV TRL 13208, 948 11219419
12 208,538 11216418
ncoma from invostments maasured at amortisod cost 2024 2023
NV R MYR
Incams frem Wakalah Al &l-lethithmar & SLAFE 8 774,904 B2 281 a53
Income rem Cammodity Mureteha plasamant 12116734 15,120,253
ingome fram Wakalah Bi Al-sihithenar inbar-bank faciiby & 005115 .
110,586 088 73,381 AE6
PERBOMNEL EXPENSES 2024 2023
MVYR VR
Salaries and wagpes 89,118,975 g A% 625
Hausing aliowanca 43,818,908 10,877, 188
Annial and ramadban bonus 35 861,581 T3 718 002
Conirigilion 1o defined conkribiatior plans 4 B43, 709 3,712 605
Medical msurance [Takafi) 4 427 266 2,234 78T
Cier stalf expenses B.B57 . 0dE aa414018
Tigning 2nd dewzlopmant 4 B47 458 T2 963
Execubyve alkwance 1,358, 846 1,0EE TR
Lndfarns 0,087 X84 676
— 851%0,100 135583135
GENERAL AND ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES 3024 2023
MVR MVR
Technalagy ralobed Gxparses 27 5 oo 16,642 B33
Fimancing expensas on kase lablites 5,051,882 5,272 458
Connectyily and irdermet charges 6. 923,443 4,544 062
Elcincily azpanges 5 984 328 4 550, T2
Marketrg and advertising axpenses 11,781,136 7084 38T
Premises seinly and mnssirancs 4 523,700 4 00,613
Cirecicrs allowance ard board related axpenses L ARG 152 &.101.187
Chher opemding exponses 11,752 672 3,000 s
Slabomary cosls 2075 906 22593.687
Legal and professional axpenses 13.664,7T13 £ 487 G5B
Communicabion experaes 2,633,347 1,781,801
Fimancng mdsied axpansss 3,308 612 1,861 154
Utilty exDen&as Z.241,653 1,268 2a7
Mairinnance axpenss 5.875.06E 4,322,918
Travmling uxpanses 1058 837 208172
Sharl'ah commitiee refaded oxpenses 14584512 1,008 680
Rl 15,218 -
LR LR F B by




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BAMK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUELD)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

Ji DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 20za 20E3
MVR MVR
Dupml:!at!un on prapery plant and aqiepment (Mabe §3% 22,884,502 16,812,320
Depreciation on right of use assets (Nole 14) 15,405 576 14,162 563
Amortisation an intangile assels (Nobe 15) ABRETD 4 337 46D
4 I?ﬁ_ﬂl! 3E||31i,.'!4:|
3 INCORME TAX 024 2033
MYR MYVR
4.1 Amgunts recognised in profit or loss
Current tax (hobe 34,3} 55 414 503 43,368 214
Dafarred tax assaf (Nota 24.5) {4.481.387) B.155 442
!{IIEﬂEJ (i Sr21TFTE
34,2 Amaunts necognised In other comprefhensive income
Irevns dhad will nof be melassited o ool o foss:
Dreferred tan Rability / (asasl) on mowement in fair vailug resarve (aquky
instrumanis] (Mot 34.5) 3,626,000 2 600,000
3.3 Current tax
The bank is liabie o pay income tax (@ the rate of 25%) n aceomtance with the Insame Tax Asl (Law Mumbar
252018 lesund on 17 Decemnber 2018 by the Government of Maklives. & raconciliation tabwesn taxabls profk
ard e accountng profit i as faliows
2024 2023
MYR MR
Acoounting prafit Dedone tax J-ESIB:ﬂd 355 ESl‘."dIIIIS-ﬂi
T affecs arthe Incorms 1ax rade « 25% 83 321 054 98435 2
Tax eifect of non-deduclible azparsas 14 BREGET 11,073,087
Tax effec] of deduclible sxparses (11,533 263) (8. 142,084}
Curment tax B 414 503 53 365,214
Numercal reconailiation of intome tar expense fo prima facie fax payabio
Accourting profi bafors fax AES BA4 395 233 TAQ 505
Tax effect ai tha Income tax rate - 25%: 2 DS SE.A435 20
Tax effeciof non-saductibia sapanses 3,537 058 a.808 Te+
Tau effec! of deduclible axpenses 248 ATA 24331
Insaims b espenss reported i the statemant of comprehendive (ncoma 04500277  SER10.TTE
Effactive tax rade {Exduding dederred tau) i 2T
Effective tax rale (incliceng defemad {2 25% aﬁ
4.4 Curront tax liability 2024 2023
MVR MVR
A gt 1™ Jardany 35 56D, 180 35, 156,893
Ceronl 5,474,503 B 36214
Tax paid during fhe year [T0.221 048} {E8,981,817)
As gt 31" Decamibar Gd 753 647 &8, 560,180

(L#

b\
Kﬂmr&' “Mgldines

R

e ————

/ﬂ.ﬁulm Farja?{,ﬁx\\




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315T DEGEMBER 2024
W NCOME TAX |CONTINUED)

4.5 Dwlorred tax {asset) | linkllity

ol | 223
AR YR
A w17 dmuary [4.193,876) 1638 434)
Recoonitlen In grafi or loss
Drafecrad 10 azmet moogrizad during the year 14451 36T (8,158 a1y
Becopnition in gthet comprehgnske incoms
[ralizerad (ax fabiftes mcogrised duning the year 3 25 Q00 280000
Ag #131" Desermbar {8.020.273) {4,183 874
34.8 Deferred tax lability | [assot] atbibutable for following:
A034 2023
Temporary Temparary
difarnce TR ierence Tax ofoct
MYR T iVE NIVR,
Properiy-and aquipmen (16, 798.240) (4,178,810} 18,976 404 (2228121}
inlangibie assets 2820460 738,117 B,031 3132 1507 828
imyesimenls i aquily seciries &0,000,000 Faafaliifu ] 05, S0 0040 18,376, 0
impakTran Kes allowants on
recelvaties feom Sracing acindins 198,205 ell). (2137, S (78,390 332, 119,847, 5y
FiLENFT 5,030,373 |;1B.T|'5£IHE s-i|1E:!-E='."ﬁt
Seforned tax Aaeele and akillies e calculatsd on ol loxable and deductibin lampoeary diferences BrENg oM ha
diferances babwaan accounling beses and mx bases of asses and kabidllas, Dedamad 19 @ provides & the rasa of
20% {1023 28%)
Movement in defarred Sax (asset) ! llabality Balance as at  Recocgnizod i’ i Balanco as at
191 Jenuary i profitor oe Atet Decombar
2024 laas 024
MYR MR R e
Propey and squipresnt (233021 11,046 65y . 14, TTEEAY
Inlongible assas 1507420 77T} - IO
Invessmants in agudly securiies 16,375.000 - 3 625,000 20,000 004
Impairmnanl loss. allawanss an
rmceivaties fom fracing actvties {18,847 563 (1,723 507 {21,871 580
H.ﬁﬁﬂmi H-.l_ﬁ-‘l.m?l?:l :] B25 J00 EHII}EIE.'I'EE
a5 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
35,1 The caldation of Baske and Ghied samings per shame & Dased on proll Tor the vear aflibsbls 1o fhe ordinary
Fharefoisars and wagied sverags numbar of andinary shanes culalandiog as af rapodieg date. Basic aarningefloas)
pier Bha 5 calcuiaied as folows
2024 2023
ATVR LikE
Prof atributable 1o ardinary sharehciders T A 2o 17R.830,003
Waighted avorage number of andinary shares 12 500,007 22.500,007
Bagls apmings per gnan - MR 4228 ?&
8.2 Mt anssts par alate s of 31" Decambar 51148 HE
3
e.-'n:llﬂa Fa Tﬂp

H\
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 395T DECEMBER 2004

37 FINAMCIAL RISK MANASGEMENT

The Banx hes exposwra 1o the following risks from its usa of financial instrurmants:
Cradit nsk

Liguwidicy rigk
Market rsk
Cpmratianal risk

LI I

This nete presents information sbout the Benk's objeclives, policies and processes for mBagLnng and
MEFaging rish

The Banics Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the estabfishmant and oversight of tha Bank's
sk management framework. The Board of Disctors has established iba Risk Management amd
Compkance Unlf (RMCLU), which is responsible far developing and manitaring risk management policies

Tha Bank’s nek management paficies arg established o identify and analyze the risks facad by the Benk,
1o set approgeiate fsk limits and comrak, and to monitor reks and adrerence e limbs. The sk
maragement policias and systeme are reviswad ragulary to reflact changes in markat cenditians and the
Bank's aciivites, The Bank, through ke training &nd menagement standerds and procedunas. &ime 4o

dawalop a discipbned and constructive condral gnviranment in which &l emploveas understand their roias
and abligations,

The Bosrd Audit Commities (BAC) oversees how managamenl monitors compliance with the Berik's rigk
rmanagemend policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framewark in
ralation 1o ihe risks faced by the Bank, The BAC |5 assisted in its oversight rola by Intemal Audil Istermal
Auidit underiakes bath regular and ad hoc revienys of risk marsgerment conlrals and procedurss, tha
results of which are reporiad b2 the BAC.

Tha Board af Dirsctéds has dvarall rasponsdaility for the establishmant and 'owaralght of the Bank's risk
managament famewok,

(1) Cradlt risk

‘Credit rak’ ig the rigk of financial oas 0 tha Bank T a custormar ar countarpanty to a fnancial instrumeant
fmils to maet ils contradtual chligetiona, and argas principally from the Bank's financing to sustamers and
deposits and placemenis with oiber banks, and investment in sacurities. For nsk managemeant reponing
purposes. We Hank cordiders and consolidates all elamants of cradit risk éxposure (such as indiidual
oipligar defaull nel, counlry end secier mek),

Tha markat risk in respect of changes in value in trading aesets snsing fram changes In merket pricss
applied 1o sacurives and specific assels included (n irading assets = mataged as & component of markat
fisk

The Banx's exposure bo ceedit risk-is inluenced mainly by the individual charactaristics of each customer
There |s na concaniretion of eradit nex geographically

Sattharment risk

The Barik's acliviies may give rige ta riaks al the irne of settiement of transactions and iredes. Sedlement
rlak ls the risk of loss dus o the failure of Bn enlity to honor #s abligadions bo delivar cash, securilies ar
athar assets s confractually agres:d

For cerfain types of transaciions. the Bank miligates this nak By conducling seltiements theough a
satllemeniicléadng agerl jo ensure that & trade |s settied only when both pariies haes fulfiled fheir
contraciual settlernent obligetions. Sablement limits form part of the Gradit apprevallimi momorng
process described earior. Accoptance of setiament risk on ree-aalilement frades reguinas transaction-
specific of counterpeny-specific approvals from RWCLU

&7
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315T DECEMBER 2024
47 FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
(11 Cradit rigk (Continuad]

Management of credif sk

The Board of ﬂn-m:gnrs hes oelegated responsibility for the sversight of credit dak 1o s Boprd Bisk gnd
I:_n-rrq:llu.nr_a Cammittae (SRCC). A sepamate Risk Mansgement Dapariment, reparting 1o the bosed of
diectors, i responsible for managing the Bank's cradit sk, inclusing the fallewing:

#

Fuﬂhl.un_ng creit palicles in astardance with the fnansing manual approved by the Board and n
r:mnuhum?n with Business wits. covaring esllateral requiremants, cradil assesarment risk grading
ared reporting, documentary ard egel pracedures, and complance with mguiatany and atatutary

* Establehing the authofzation siruciura for e appraval and renawal of credil Taciliies, Authonization
limits are allocated to Financing & Investment Commities (FiC) of the Managerent Largar faciliies
redjuing approval by the Beard of Demcltars as spprogriate.

*  Reviewng and assessing cradi risk: FIC of the Management assesses all credit expasuras within its
designeled imis whils exposums s assessad by BRCC in excess of designeled imie. hafare
facdities arg committed o cuslomers by the business unit concemed. Ranewals and revaws of
facdiies are subject io the same raview prOCEES.

. Limitng concenirafions of axprewrs 10 counterpartios, pesgraphies and industries {for financing
receivabla snd sovences “Snancing”, fimancial guarsnieas and smilar exposwes), and by issuer,
credit ravng band, market liguadity and country for invesiment securiies}

- Devedaping and maintaining risk grading sysiamn io categarza cxpasures acconding b the degrae af
risk of fnancial loes faced and i focus manegaement on tha effendant deks. The fsk grading sysiem
is used in detarmining whem impaimem provisions may be mguired sgainst specific credt
expaiites. The curment fisk grading framewniic consisls of live grades reflecing varying degreas of
risk of dafaull. The respaneibikly for sating risk grados liss with the Business deparimant whia s
walidalion end regular reviews = tHe responsibdity. of tha RACLL

*  Reviewng comgplianse of business unils with agreed exgosure limis, incliding thosa for sslectad
Induatries, coundry risk and product typas Regular rapens an he credl guslly af local parfalics are
prowided 1o FIC, which may requine appropriabe cormbctive actaon o ba jaksn

*  Providing advice, guldence and spec|aisl akils o busineas usits b sromoede besd praclice throughout
thi Bank in the management of cradl risk

The busingss unit & required b impsament Bank's cradit pokcies and praceduras and |a meapansible for
fha quality and parfarmancs of ils credii portfalis and far monkoedng and contoling all cradit rsks 0 its
partfolics

Regular awdits of busiress urds and RMCLU's processes ane undedaken by ntarnal audil degartment.
Diversification of financing and irvesimant acthilies;

Revewing compiance, on &n ongong basis, with agresd sxposure limils relaling o counfierpaties,

industries: amd countries and meviewing limits in eccordance Wwith sk managemeni sirabegy ang marnkes
fresicls.

In addition, e Bank manages ihe credit exposung by citaining secwity whene appropnabe and lmsng e
durglicn of exposure. Incenain cases, the Bank may alsc close qut ransactions or assign tham o pihar
countarpartios & miigaha cradi risk

L]
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR EMDED M15T DECEMBER 2024

AT FIMNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
[} Cradit fsk (Comtinued)
&} i, Cash and cash eguhmadants
The Bank bald cash and cash pquivalenis of MR 152,208 146 a5 g1 37s8 Cecember 2024 (3181 Dacamber
2023 - MVR 679,831,850}, The cash and cash equivalents are hald wilk cantral Banks and firancial insfitution
eourmigrpanas which héve got minimum eredt ngk axpopure

(k) L Collateral hald and pther crodit enhancement

Typwe of credit sxposure Percentage of exposure that is
Mote sublect to callateral Principal type of
requitemants collateral held

2024 2023

Recalvalde fram financing activities

Educaton financing g % Nona

Tawarnug 4% 5% Land and proporty
Murabana 15% 18% Land and groparty
YWiakala 100 - Land and proparty
bsdizna’ 1004% 100% Land ard proparty
Diminishing Muzkaraka 100% 100% Land and prapeny

li. Financa-ta-valsa ratio

The Lable below strabfy credil exposuwes from financing faciiges bo cusiomers by tanges of Finance-lo-value
(FTV) ratio. FTV ia calculated s the rath of the gross amount of the finance facilty or the amaunt cammitisd for
firance. faclily commidmants i tha value of the coliateral. THe value of e colstedal is based an the collsiaral
valua &t ongematon updated to refledt the curent market waluas, For gnedit-impared Sinsnce the vakie of
Gollateral is bpaed an the masl recand epprasals

2024 2023

FTV Eatio YR MYR
Less than S0%: 1,627 427 140 1.216 468 360
51% - 70% BO3 149, 085 B55,098.920
T1%: - 80%: B8 40] B0G 440 463 BES
2% - 100% 417 615,603 425 803871
Mo codatarsl required (esnsumes financingl 2 356576 306 1,467 BOB. 519
Tiortad 5,891 256,087 AR
Credit-impaired finarncing
Lessihan 50%: 177 130,021 123,737 82
51%: - 70% 2245 535 3,933 T
Pore thar 700 X >
Mo cofateral required (consumes tnancing) 80430, 681 47 125278

50 A0, 141 §74 100167

Ag al 395t Decamper 2024, the Bank did nol hedd any firensial mslruments. for which ro loss alipeance |5
recagnized becauss of collaberal

\\\,ﬂ;f.'_n'  Mardives



MALCHVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 3TATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

F2R THE YEAR ENDED ST GESEMEBER 7024
37 FIMANCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]

B Crodit risk |Comtinued)
B} L. Fimamce-io-valua ratio [Continuad)

Raceivenles from financing activltlas glvan b8 earporate cusicmes

As 2t 3151 Dacerber 2024, the net carrying amount of sredil impaired financing Tackilies granted to corporale cusiomees i
MR 91,356,812 (202X MR 47 TIS.66T) ane the valun of iSeniifabie colsseral jmanty and and progerty) haid sgains
asa financing Faciiliss amounted o MYVR 2456 (2023 MV 127000 For gach nancing fckty | the vate ot fiscoses
collstargd is capoad ol the nominal amoun| of the Fraciss faciity that & is hoid against

Heceivable from fnancing facliitins mandatosiy measumd at FVTPL

&5 Bl 318l December 2034, the mandmum aoposure 10 credl sk of invesiment securtios massured 8L FYTPL was their
carfyieg amoierd of MR 121 582,730 (2023 MVR 120,501, 23%). The bank has minmized $he credit dsk axposuro of 2l of
thesa firandng activties by abiRining Boversign guaranien

e} Amounts arising from oxpected credit less ["ECL™)
Inputs, assumsplions ad fechnigues ssed for estimaling nmpairmend
fo} L Bignificant Increass in credil sk

When delarmining whethar the fse of dofach on a financial inslryment has iccreased aigrificantly since inlilal recogntion
i bank considars reasonabio and supperiabie infermalion Bl e elevant and availabie wilhowt undue cost or gifert, ThE
inchudas bath quantilalive and qualibalae infermplion and dnalyeis, based. on the bank's historical oxparencs and e
cradl asasssment snd inciuding forwand-looking Infoematon

The obechve of the assessmant is ko idantily whedher B signifeart Pereaae v ooredit risk fas occureed for an EXpOILET Oy
CoOMmparnmsg:

- e Famaining Bebime probabi ity of defaull (PO} s a1 the raporing date; wis

= e remaining lllstme PO e this point in time fhol was essmaded ai e me of nilis regesgnisen of the exposus
iodjusiod whare relevan for changes in prepayment sapeciafens),

The bank uses befow critania for detannining whelher there has been a sigrificam Incresss in cradi fsk:

- Quarfialive [eal based o meyaran] n PO

- qualEeirs indicalors; and

- backglop of 30 days pasidua.

felil, Gararaliag the e atructuns of Probabkibly of Default [PD)

Days pas! die Foas igken as the pnmary inpul inlc celarmnaticn of the fam studue ol PO for exposses, The bang
collams parormangs: and detal information abcei He cradl sk AEpORES aneirad Dy Tvpa ol profduct ard cusimar

Thié park amnployd sEi@ice modals 10 enBkied e 0akE colcied and gecssals astinaieg ol I tamaining dalFne 20 &
EpoSLrne and Bow these are gapechod 40 change @& & result of B passage of 1me.

For ab finarcing portfoles oxcapl for Trade Finance Murabahia, o Trarsition Malrx based on days past dus & wsed. For ha
Trada Finance Murabaha portfolc. sinco tha above mathods cid nol provida 2 staisScaly significant outpoe, Ame rate
Analysk 15 UERd,

This anahysis indudes the demificelion angd calfuraticn of ralsbionship batwaen changos in defaut rates and changes in kay
mecio-ecopomic fsciom &3 wiel 88 iredepth arsdysia of he impest of e cenein olhe fachom (e g Torbesrance
nxparence) on the fsk of defaull. For foreerd looking sdjpsments, the bans hes pecdfoemed hislodcal analywis sl
ianiffed fa key ecoramic waciabkes iImpactng cradil sk and eapected credi iosaes for the foan (fnancing) portfalio

Tha cank has wsed & soom cand apgroach for further edining T ECL medel b order $n cbéain & more nealstic delauli rite.
The soom card incorparates qualtatue and quamisive macro-econceic BRCE which are salecied based on he
relevarey #nd eoproprigianess. Eamn factor B oasegned a wapgrtiage baged an the retive inbedepandence wilh the
dedausl mabe. Cluantiistive Fackors inchade GOF growih mbs, nflafen. unemplagmant ratle and qualtztve fociams includo
manajemer coficok on loan {financing) portfolia, mgpadateny impact, gevernman polokes: and industry and busnoss.
Cuanialive faciors are: besesd on economic data and forecasie publabesd Iy IWF

Liging variaty al axirmal actual and jonscasted infaimatian, e bank Bmlsas B "Base Gasn” view of the fuiure direcdon
ol relavant aconnmic vafabias imainly GOP Growth, infiatien, uremplasrrant Wi [ep effac of thasas varlanie] as wel 25
represenalive rEnge (Baal Casa and VWors! Gase) of oivr possible forecast scerdrios: The Dank then uses the Torecasls
%0 adjusi s estimakes of P08

&1

e
pitte Partn o,
a5




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK FLC
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

17 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
{1y Cradie flsk [Continued)
(€] Amounts arising from expected credit loss [“ECL") [Continued)
(] lii. Detarminlng whethier credit fiak has increased significantly

Tha bank gssesses whalher credil nsk has incressed significanily since inilial recognition 81 esch reporting
dale. Datermining whathar an incresas in credit risk |5 signitcant depends on the characienstics of he fingscal
inabrurmend and the borrowar {cusiomer)

A5 8 backsiop, iha Bank considers thet B significart incraass in crodi sk oocurs po laker (han whan an asset &

gquad ar more than 30 days pas! due Days past due are debarmined by counting fhe rumbar of daye ance the
wariasl alapaed due dals in respact of which full pevrmant kas mol been receiyed.

IF thare i pyicance thal thers i3 no fenger a significant ncranss in Gradit fek ralative to infial recagnition, than
Ihm lpgs alkwance on &0 instrument raiurms 16 Beirg maasured as 13-manth ECL. Whan sonfracival {ferme of a
ladn (financing facgy) have been modified, avidercs fhat iha criteria for recogrismg (feima ECL are no longer
et includes a hislory of up-bo-date peyment parformsance against the modilied consraciual farma.

The Bank mersars he effeciivaness of he crtena used o idenify sgnilican) increases in cradi risk by ragUET
reuiwg,

() iv. Dafinithon of default
Tha Bank considers a finencial asaed 1o be n dalaul when:

= the Suslomer s anlissly 1o pay B credit abligations to the Bank i N, wilhaul receaize by ke Bank fa actians
Blash B4 fealaing secufly [ any & held);

= M@ customar is more than 50 days pasi due an ary matanial crecit chigation io ihe Bank, Dverdrass 6re
coneklerad 65 haing past diss ance Ihe Suslomer nas beedched an adwidsd limd o been acesed of a limet
smallar {han tha currand amaunl culstanding; ar

= It i& bacoming probable that the bornower [ocustomer) will resbructuna the asset 85 a resull of bankngaley dua o
tFe cussdomear's ingbilly to pay #s cradit abligafons.
IF aaaeeeryg whethes a borrower (cusbomer) ig in defaull, the benk considers indicalors thal ans;

« gualitative: &.p. exbension 1o larms grantad. amears within tha 1934 12 monthe, sigrficant changes in bukingas
financial anodar aconomic conditians of e cuslomer and aclual or expacied reatrsctinng.

- guarkaiive: &.p ovendue siatiae snd non-payment on enathar chigation of {ha esmE I55408r 1o the Benk; ang
- based on data devwaloped internaly and ootemad from axtemal sources,

Tha dalinition of detault Ergaly aligns wilh that apalsd by the Graup for regulabary saptal purpases

{e] u. Incarporation of Forward-caking Infarmation

Tha Bank incomarabas [onward-looking infarmaton b ds messdmerent af ECL.

Tha bank has used & accre card sparoach far furthers refining 1he ECL mocsl in drder 6 cbiain 8 more raahslic
defaun ral@ Tha soora cand ncorporaies quaitalive ardd quantiaiive macm-acinomic Taciors which ana
salkacied based on e rlevancy and appropratenass. Each faclor & assigned @ weigiiape based on ihe
miative Interdepandeance with the defaul rale Quantistivs factar includa GOP groath rate, ieflalics,
unmmploymend reta and gaalialive fasiors inclede management dullook an lGan Tnancing) porfcde, regulaleny
mpacl, gowammant policies and Industry and Dusirass. Quanktalive faclors are based on economio datea and
{orncasis published by IMF

The Sark has ideniilfed ang documenied ey drivers of credit sk and credt leases for asch porialio of
finmncial inglrumanss ard, using an analysis of histarckl dats, Fas eabmaisd relatonsrps Debaean
macnaeconomic variables and cradil figh and credE sses
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLS
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR EWDED 315T DECEMBER 2074

&7 FINANGIAL FISH MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
[0 Crodit rsk (Continued)
le] Amounls ariging from eapectod credit loss (MESLY) (Coalinued)
le] v, Incodparation of foeward:lsoking infarmation |Somtlnued)

Periodizally, Sve Bank canmies cul siress testing of mone extreme shocks (o calbroie its determingtion of 1 upsids and
downiside mprakeslaliees sissnnios. A compretknsyE eviie B periormed at laast arsully o e esign ol dhe scenarios
tho Bank's infa sl sdam.

Th Eank has identiisd ard documended kay drivens of tredit nsk and crodi laxeed P esch porttaio of fAnanoial
irslruments’ and, wsing am analyss of higons dabs, hae essimoned relatianshis Bsbvaen AMAcmeconemic varakies and
credil fisx and oedil losses.

Thw acomamic scenonice used as al 31% Docamiber 2004 ncluded He falowerg key indcators for Makives o be years
anding 11" Dasember 2126 o 2020

2025 _ 2048 2027 2028 020
GOP grewsh rane Buso 4.7% 4.8% 4,58 455 4 5%
Llgars 8.0% B.0% 7.0% T &% 7.4
Povwnaihe 1.8% 1.5% 1.2% 1,%% 1.7%
Inflatian rats Huns 4 A% 22% 2.0% 2 0% 2 0%
Lipsida AE% 1.5% 1.3% 12% 1.3%
Ooanzica 5.2% 2 8% 2.71% T LM
Uremploymant rade  Sass 5.6% 4.2% a.2% 4.3% AF%
Linpite 2085 3.3% 2.8 1w 1%
oansida 4.7 8.5% 5.5 5.1% 1%

Predicied mistionshins bateeen the koy indicabors and dedaut and k358 mies an yarous porflios of reccial aasals have
bien déeaitped Based on araysng historoal dala cver tho pest 5 yoars

Economic variable assumgplians

Trea ezl dable rofiects the senstiviy of Expocted Credl Loasas a8 Al 313l Decamber 2024 1o easanably peasts
chengas to tha kay aconemic ncior adpstmania hald conetanl ia the ECL moded

A%, Ho Change 418
Inflatian rads 145,538,084 §49 854 777 153 950,385
GOP growth rala 150473, 737 449,854 777 143 534 987
Liresmiplaymian] rate 143 T6E QR0 48054777 PESAAR.402

[&] wi. MiacEfind financsal asaaks

The cantrachual lerme-of a loan (fsanong ‘adktyd may be modified for a numbar of reasons, Induding charging marked
conditians, cusiomar releriocn and ather (aclors: nod relased looa curent ar polenbial crecit delonoration of the cusiomesr, An
meisling Inan {inancng ladky) whose orms hove boan modiod may be darccogrisad and the enogalisted loan {financing
faciity] recogresad S A new 0an (Snancing facitly] At ki valua

Wianan the jpre of 5 fremonl pasei pre messifingd gnd tha megificeion dees rod eacdl o e gribien, Bha dedssrrinabion of
whathar lha sisals cradi sk Fie Peraaped signiicantly by analysing both qualtative and based on e delinguency status
badors e madifcalion of S of e sanimet

The bark eregoleise oans (inancing facikliag) bo sutbimnad i fransnl gifisullas (Mmfarma 1o es "Tortaaranon acietioe™)
to maxmiss oolaciion opporfunities ond minimse the nsk of defouli,

The revised berms usually incugs extanding Lhe maluky, changing tha timing of profl payments and amending e terms of
lgan {financing| covenanis,

For financisl asests medified ag parl of P bank's SrBasrunce polcy, the estmale of FD refects whether Be madifcatizn
has improved or resbored S Eaak's akifly W ssllesd profd and princpsl end the bank's previous sepenance of similee
forbsamnce action. As por of fhis process. the Bank swalualas e bomowenjostomer)'s paytrent parformance agnided fhe
modiied oonlractual terms and considas wansus bebandgural indicagrs.




MALDIVES ISLANIC BANEK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2024

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(1] Cradit risk [Continuad)

|} Amaunts ariging frem expected credit loss ("ECL") [Santinund)
i€} vii. Measurement of EGL

The kay inpuls inle the measurement of ECL are the term structura of M@ folowing variables:

Prabakility of default (FO)
Loss ghven dafault (LGD
Exposure al dafault [EAD)

ECL for axpasures in Stage 1 is cakzulased by mullipfying the f2-mansh 20 by LGD and EAD. Litslima ECL |8
calzulated by muplyng the Eeime FD by LGD and EAD.

Probability of defawll (PD)

PD eatrnates are eslimates af & cealn date, which ane calculated based on stagstical medals, and assansed using
Yafaus categaries based an hemogencus charachadsties of expasures, Thase statistical medels ara basad an
iresrally campded dasa compriging bath musnlitstive and qualiates fackars. Where | is avalable, markel data may
alss be used o dariva the PO for lange corporale counlamparties,

Thie mathodology of eslimating PDs is discussed abicve under (he heading 'Gonenating tha term sirciums ef PO
Less given defauli (LGD}

LGO is the magnitbude of tha fkely loss If thera |5 a delaw® The benk eslimaies LGD parametars based on the
hisicry of recovery rates of claims againsl defaulied counterpamas. The LD madals coasider the struciure
callabaral, sarsanty of the claim and recovery sosts of any collabaral that is mbegral to tha financial assss Far
financings sacured by ralal propady, FTY rafios are a key parameder in delemining LED. LGO estmales an
recalizrabed far differard economic scenarnos and, for real astaie financing, 1o neflect gossible charges in proparty
picas. Thay are calculaled on 8 ciacaunied cash fhw basia wsng the effestive prafitrale a3 the discourting feciar

Exposure at defauit (EAD)

EAD repre=snts the expecied exposure n the event of a defaylt The bark desives the EAD from ihe curmerd
aupasuts 1o e countamary and palentisl changss o the cietent amount sliiowed undar tha conlrack including
amerizason The EAD of a fnancial assat |5 He gross carmping amaunt Far finanddng commifnants ard firancal
guararieas, The EAD Includes the amount deewn, as wel as paleabial fulune amounis thel may Be drawn undes tha
confracl which are estimated based on historical obsersations and fonveed-lcoking farecasta.

#Ag dogoribed abave, and subpact bo using a maximum of 8 12-month PO for ffancial assets for which oedit nisk has
not signifsgandly incneased. the bank measures ECL considering the risk of dafaul guer e maxirmum condrachual
penod ovar which R 5 exposed to credR sk, even & for fsh meanagemsnt purpases, the bank considers a longer
perod. The maximom confraciial pediod exktands to he dale &l which e bars Bas he righl 1o require epaymaent
(paymEnt) of an advance ar ieminaie a loan [{inancing) commiimen of Quaranias;

Howewar, for Murabahah Trade Financing fecibiies Lhat include both @ frarcing and an urdrawn comrmibment
cormpanend, 1he bank measures ECL over 8 pericd lorger then 1ha maximum contrecual perdod i e banks
contraciual sillty to demand repaymen [peyment) Brd cancel this undreen commimant does nat lims the bank's
axaoking ba credd Meass o e comrachial notice pedod, Thase facitties do nol have a Fxsd berm ar f@payment
{payrent) shructune and ame menaged on A collective bass. The bank cen canced them with immadiale aflest but
tnis contactual right ks not enfarcad in the narmal day-ta-day rmanagement but enly when the bark hecomes awire
af an mcrease in cedit risk al tha tacility lavel

v
| ™ §
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S§TATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3457 DECEMBER 2024

A7 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTIMUED)
(1] Sredit risk (Continupd)

[=} Aemounts artaing from oxpected credit loss [TECLT) (Continuad)

i) vl Measuramant of EGL {Continued)
Exposure #f defmuit (EAD) (Coniiuod]

Where modeling of & paramaler & caried cuf an a collective bass,

the basis of shared rek charastanstics that include:

= mstrumant ype
- Coilmbaral yps
- rermalning bamm (o masdly

the financial instrumants &re grouped am

Th Groupings. an subject io regular reniew Lo ensure thal cepasures within a paticular Grous remain

approprisiely homoganecs
{6} villi. Loms allowancs

The lellgwing fabies show reconcilations from tha opaning do Se dosing balence of (ke loss allowance by

class of fnaneial inglrumenis.

" Decembar Hi24

Stage 1 Stane 2 Stage 2 Total
MYR MYE MVR LI
Rapaivaiis ffom Sancing activies measued
at amotieed coll and Lndsrw faancing
fasiiies
Balarce as af M1" January 2024 IE524688 4018753  O&E03.074 119085815
Transiars
Transfer fram Siage 1 o Slage 2 [Th3.28m 3,614,301 = 2881002
Transler fram Slage 1 to Slage 3 [232.342) 10372788 1RAT0428
Trametar ram Sage 2 1o Slaga 3 (1,75 H2E} B.500,004 o P08 A58
Transtar fram Siege 3 o Slage 2 - TRE. 67 (242 538) 542 718
Transder fram Stage 3 to Siags * 15,254 3 (I0BA0BBA) (10,825,830
Transdar fram Stage 2 o Slage 1 118,678 [Z.6B2.750] - (2482 011)
Mal remeadurement af lpgs (18,574, 8140} (H2T 244 3 482 497 {18,819 857)
v linancial aasets angirsted 11, 747.524 2735 &l 18 754,574 34 247847
Emiance s 3] 318 Dacambear 2004 A, 7546, B0 B24EAEE 134400495  VADBGA.7TT
31" Dwcamber 2023
Stage 1 Gtapga 2 Stago 1 Tedal
MVR WVR hvR MVR
Recetvadie from fnaneing GoHivItag measured
a! araariied Soaf &nd wadrawn financieg
faciifies.
Esiznon a5 al 0" Jaruery 2023 8,780,844 ATEE4TE BE,404,B23 85 pa0 A0S
Transfers
Tranafes fom Stage 140 Stage 2 (546 285 &3 853 > 2 BA7 584
Trargfe from Stege 1 o Sege 3 253 4201 . 2 534 BTH Za0Y 240
Transher bom Stage 2 1o Stage 3 - {8434, 0473 5,360 512 2892 Hap
Trarafe: fom Stage 3 1o Stiage 2 - 129,677 [#15,802) (85825
Tranafar from Stage 310 S2age 1 10,754 . (HSTT 264)  [BO5E.4T)
Transfar fom Stage 2 1o Stage | 55,130 {.801,125) - 11.505. 98
Mat remeasuremant of loss (1,838,821 (THE, 55 B 784 503 6202 303
Maw financial assets ariginsted 15,276,060 1480782 200,334 16,945 485
Balanca a2 al 31&] Dasambar 2023 18,544 EER 401 5153 95.503.074 11900585
i)
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
HOTEE TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR FNOED 2ET BECEMBER 2024
I FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGSEMENT [CONTINUED)
(I} Sradit righ (Continuod)
(&) Ampunis arising from sspesied credit lass ("ECL"} (Eontinuad)
(c] viil. Loss alosance [Conbinuesd]
oadl b T frores

Trea fodicedneg labde sels out a reconciiston of changes in the oroes carngsg amount of crood Impaingd Sisircmg faciies o
CUBKINHNE.

2024 203

MNA MVR
Crening balance of credi-Fnpaned firancing fackities b cusiaman 174,100,997 61,458, 757
Closs#oo ag cradit-impakad durirg the year 153377, 347 a8 G186 pad
Tisreferiag o rot credit-mpained during 1ha was (5EA0R BOA) {25,333, 410)
Change in Ermying amouni af Tacises that ramamed crad - (B 553 684} (6,852, 04)
Cheeting balance of credi-mpained nercing Fasilties 1 custormess 250509, 441 174 100117

|d] Soncantration of cradit fak

Ban reviews on tegulsr b s concenirstion of credit gramed in aach of the producs oifered. The cheorsfcation Was
made i ersung el B acoepraile el af riskom lime wiih tha risk aopaibs of the Bank ik maintained. The drersticasion
deasion waE mASe Bl (e Amsets-Liabilty. Comribea (ALGO), whare o TR iBrgete and pressct stategies mothe
Managamant and anliviaing the diversficafion The product development saamn of tho Bank s advasd o the Elrategic
desiscre taken i dversikzaticn af the penlaio loalign ther procuct development activities accondngly

The Bark moriters concanirabdcn of cradif rigl By Industyy and By whetr the customer s 8 basinges asiomer of @n
roviclal cusioman AN anales of conceniratiors: of credil nek from koans and advancas Minancing) b cusiomens grd jcan
cormaElmeris (Enencing commiimania) a9 nanclal pasrartees ssusd ana showr Bolow

Racalvabie trem linencing Finance comm imenis end financial
activities guasarieas issuind

2024 2023 024 2023
Concentralion by indusiry VR = MVE MR M¥YR
Consumar goods TZ30 123784 1ABd.ZrLao0 %50 206,005 706,815,600
Trareport and communicabong 175,776,645 7,282 302 14 853,854 2, 604, 054
Commence - whoesala an els) 1a0e 300 5. 504 24T S0 R8T 353 538,910 308 a0, 437
Conskuction - residaniisd Rnanging 2202651 352 1,797,381, 108 154 Hag =21 Baf, 124 TEv
‘Loneluchon - oommerncial bulding financng 436 504 4T 400,014 G231 151 153 338 142 0% 207
Elecirdty, ighling and power 11,502 481 18 525 508 a -
Tounsm 7 531,613 157,647 551 45 217 A%8 8,000, 0On
Fishing 43 348 831 BT 458 757 - BT 0
CHrars 7,560,253 (1 ST TSRO0 - .
Tedal SUEE1 288 BAT IIE1?mU11'.| 1272 478,204 1|lll|Eﬂ-ﬂ.5T'|
Concaniration by secior
Business 1.337 208,485 De4 231 081 833,853,841 84,581 731
Individual 45584082 a8 B 253511829 830,822 563 a0k a0
Tesal 5.501.258 847 4 2T FA0HE 1,272 478,304 * ol e 8T

—_——— r————————————————

[T} Ligid ity elsk

Liquicity risk m Lhe risk st tha Bank wal encoumer Moty in messting ™a oDigalions paeocialed wilh ils Nnandal kebiitlsg
thiat ara settied by dalhvanng cach or ancther fnancal asceis The Bank's mansgsnan revéss 8 gk ard iabdly
poaigon of the Bark o @ rpgular RERE 1D erapne thal Thans ig N mMigmaich of assals and kabiting

tltllnll“.ﬂ Paﬂﬂam
\Rnff"ﬁ ’“‘Q




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLS
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :MM“MUED]
FOR THE YE&AR EMDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

AT FINANMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
{ii] Liquidity risk
Managernant of llguldity rsh

The bark's board of directors s2is he bark's stretegy for massging liquidiy sk Board hae approved the
Sguidity policy for the bank whereby rescansibility for varsight of the implemsnsatan of thig peficy is delegated o
Managemant Commities (MC). MC owarsees dank's lquidity pofses and proceduras mplsmantaticn, Treasury
function mansges 1he bank's kquiddy position on a day-lo-day bass and reviews daily repodis cowvering the

Mpilgity posibion of the bank, A summary repord, Inéluding any exceations and ramedial action taken, 5 submitiad
requiary to MC.

The benk's approach ba managing fouidity s to ensume, &g fir as peashbila, that & wil lwaye Rave suffisent
ficuldity Lo mesl its lisdildies whan hey are dws, under bath rarmal and sirassed condiions, wahout mcuring
unaceapiable lessas or isking demege o the bank's reputation, The kay elaments of e bank's liguidity stategy
» Maintsining 2 diversdec funding base conaialig of cuslomer deposits (bath retsl and camoraie) and
wholesale market depasts and maintaining contingency Taciiliss. encumtared and 5o net EYallabia s paisntial
colateral for ohtaining funding

= Cafrying a parthobio of bighly liguld assats, dheraibad by cumency and malurily,

* Menitering ligukdity rabios, matuily mismatches, behavisral charclerstics of the tark's Snancial assets and
fnancial kabilities. and the axtent (o which Iha bank's assels ars encumaeded and 50 not Bvalabie as potantial
collatersl for abtaining funding,

» Carnrying oul streas tesbng of fne bank's liquidily pashion

Treasury funclicn recenes infarmalion frem olhar business units mgRrding iha liquidity proflie of thair inancial
aesets and fnancial liabdies and details 'of ather projected cash flowe aneing from projected fulure business
Treasury funchiar then mamtaing g portiolie: of abor-term liguid assels, Ehgely made up of shortderm Aguid
imeastmant secunites, financing ard acvances 1o banks and facilties. 10 andore thal sufficant liguidity &
marianad wEhin the bank as a whoia,

Regular liguidily streas sesbng is canducied uncer a varkity of scenanos covesing Dol nanmal @nd mons seyeds
matkel conditions, The scenados are developed 1aking into accourd bofh bank-spacific evanis (6.0, & reling
downgrada) and fmarkat-ralated ovants (g9, prolorged maret iliguidity, mducad funglaiily of curencies, natural
disastars or cEher catasirophing],

{2} Exposure fo ligusdity risk

Thi key msasure usad by tha bank for managing liguiity Ask is the rato df ligukd asasts o liguid labibes, Far
this purpesa, liguid aesets are thogs agsals thal are trsded in aclive and pricnary matked and ncluge, Cash in
hand, Current accoun balancas with MMA, Balances with cdhed banks neluding plécements, Un-ensurmbersd
approved governimant secunties, ivestmanis 0 shaes (held or trading), and Units af aper-anded mutual funds
Liguid fiabiltes are amouris which fall doe far immediaie payment, g damand fabidiles gic. Details of the
msportad bank rabia of liquid assats S0 liguid lehilties at the neporsng date wera a6 follows:

2024 2023
Ag &l the rapoding cabta 53 24% 6153

(&) Maturity amakpsis for financial liakilities and financial assets

The amaunts shawn n the malunly analyss below have been compled oy apalying discountes cash flaws
which exciude Futura applicable peafits. for the lssued financial gusrantes coriracts, and urrecognised financs
commitmends, eariest possible contrachsal matunty has been considersd. Far ssuad Saancisl guaranes
contracs. tha maxdmun amount of tha guarantes 5 aiozabad 10 1ha parlast pericd in which ha guarantee coukd
e caled. Spme astmaied makarivas wil vary due ba changes in contmctual cash Sows such as early repaymenl
(aayrnent) sption of financing. As pan of the managemen| of bguitiy nek ansing from financial llapdites, (ke
bank hoids |iqukd sssaty samdrising caah Bng cash equivaants end balancas with Maldives Mansary Aulharity,
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC SANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 3167 DECEMAER 7054
37 FINANCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{lil) Marsst risi

I'-'I:a-1:::a-: fisk I the riek ot changes n market prices, such =s foreign gechenge rabes and [ral raes will /s the
Bani's incama or Ik wnkug of ity hakdings of finendal matrumants, The olyective of market fsk managamerd is 1o
Menafe &0 cortro Matkel vish eopasunes wihin acceptable pararmalers, whila oplimizing the b

Managemond of markot risk

Boand hn_q Appeeved Markal Rk policy defining paramalers for cagn ypa of riak in aggrogats and far portiolios. MO
$81-Up with aumhonty h:-_lrnpdmm thasa podicsae and manitor §mits en doy-bo-day basa with markat Iquidily being a
arimery {ncior & deberrining the leved of axnosures saf fer trading portiolios wiithin the defined parameses,

The Sank amplcoys a ranga of tools % montar and limil meket risk CHPORATES. TIaes oo s pesd balos,
Exposuns to marked risk - Hon-irading poritalios

The prircipal gk 1 which non-trading ponfolios are cxposed b e fsk of nss from Mecleions in tha futiens cpshy Minws
or faif wallses of fnanclal inslrumans becauss of @ changs in markel prodt rates. Frofi rate fek is managed pelnsisaly
Ihraugh monitaing grofil rahe gaps and by hauing pre-aporned limits Tor regricing bands. MC 18 ke meridaning body for
campilance with (hes= imils and s aesiaied by Traasory knction inils day-o-day morisi g Boiilias,

Equity price risk is subject lo regular manitorng by MC, out is not cumantly significant in reiation 10 he owersll resulls

ang financial positon of e Henx

The Banc mordors gy concentrabion rak in refalion ba arry imdrdidual foralgn eurancy o in negard ta the Fanslafen of

‘:ﬂrﬁ: B'.:q‘rﬁljn'r ﬂ;ﬁ-ﬁ:ﬁm: anc monalary sessis and bablitios into (e furdienal curenoy of tha Bark 1 Bccerdancs
& Foralgn Exchangs Expisiie Limits (FEELY and Mgt Open Postion (NOF} Tweshokis ssipubsied by Sakives

Manetary Autharity I s

{8} Exposure to marknt rigk

The folkrwing teble sets out thie allocation of assels and labiities subject o markal rsk

Carrying amaount
204 20E3
Asgats Llﬂq,l'bej'hm“lf!m KYVR MYR

Cash ard cash squivalents

Racalvablas fram financing acivities

Inwestmant in oquity securitias

Ivdlitvanl in maney markel securkics and ofer masiments

Linbilitios subject 1o marked risk
Capogits
Lease babiitias

138,288,082 B2 872601
L TERE10.358 . 1.842.8082 9083
127,000,000 192.500,000
121 G2 TE 120 507,238

3138582 171 2136666 Bad

B,351,3308, 594 5070408 581
&5 Ba0 pag HOL555.067

__BAS6.FR7.360 _5.186 841 548
(b} Exposure to profit rate risk - Mea-iriding portfolios

Frafi rata risk axabe in prodi-beanng assets, dus ta fha sessidily of & chanigs in the ssaefs value resuling fom ha
variaslity of profil rases . SiNoe proft rale dAsk managermant RS bEsoma imparalive, e Bank iakes proadiive masiras

I ranaga the sspasura by foracasting b rabe NuclsaSons

Al tha rapoiing dale, he Banks pfold rate-boarng finandal instramenis wars:
Figad rala instfimants

Fnancial aseals

Me receivables from financing ediviikas

Invasimeris moasised & amanised ool

Francial Kabdbes
Custamars’ sccouns
Cue o banks and other fingncind instikitions

Yariable rate mstrisments
Fiancial ageaie
Invmatments mandatorly measured af FYTPL

224 2023
MV VR

§ Tas.a%8 12 4108 764 550
2776045888 3 1BB.ETI T

4,361,338 814 A.076405 581

B55.354 134 250.051 674

131,682 720 120001330
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CON TINUED]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313T DECEMBER 2024

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
(1ii] Markal fisk (Contlnued)
(d| Expasure o curroncy risk

Cutrenay rigi i§ Me risk that the vakie of a financisl imstrament wil Nuctuate dus to change in fargign exchange
rates and anses fram financial instrumant daneminated in forelan curency. In acoordanes with MMA'S Rrudantal
ragulations, the faraign exchange risk axposute in any single currency, shall not exceed 25% of § banks aapdtal
Dasa fer o long posfion, and 15% of a benk's capilal bese for & short pasition. The swerall formign cwrency
axpasure {short and lang cumency posifions) for gl curmenees and on-balancs sheet and oif-baiance shess
camhbinad, using spot mid-rasas and (he shorhand method shall not excead 40% of & bank's 2apial baae,

(d} |, Exposure to currancy risk - Mon-irading Pertfolios

The bani's exgesire ta forsign cumency riak ks as fallows based on netianal Emaunt,

24 2023
usy UEs
Cash #rd balances with cther Danks 17,368,418 20,279,740
Batancas with Maldivas Monatary Authority 52,882 581 22.148,241
Inwasiments in athar Nnamncial instrumants 20,273,108 16,008,237
Wat recatvabiles from financing activites 51,843 445 42 736 054
Ohar asseils 11,540,777 #2358, 241
Cusiomess’ Acaumia 1131,638.B021 (161,436,275
Ceher dablickes [2, 38 35T 070 538
Mot statement of fingncial position expasure 20,223.253 12167 738
The fallowing signficant exchange rales ware appliad durineg e pear;
Reparting dale
o Averape Fate spot rate
Yoar Faar Year ¥ear
onded anded ended ended
2024 2023 2024 2023
t UEE: Maldivian Rufiyss 15.31;5 15,385 15,255 15 305

I respec of the menetary assals &ng Sabilllies denorinaled n LSS, the Bank hae a limiten curmeney risk
exposume o0 such palancas gince 1he Maldidan Rufiyaa is pegoed o the US Daliar wihin & Band 4o Suchuate
within £ 30% of the michpoing of dachange rale

e} Expomure {0 sgulty price sk
Eqully price flake arises 62 & resull of fuclualicns In markst prices of Indiviousl eguilies
For equily Invesimenis: designaled as FVOCH equity Bwestmants, & 10% dacrassa i the prices of Maddivas Sheck

Exchange would Fave dacregsad equily and Investmards maasened al FYGICHEs BE 3181 Decernber 2024 by MVA
12,700,000 (2023 MJR 11,260 0000

T
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{iv) Dperational risk

Cpermtional risk & e sk of des or indrect [oss arising from 2 wide varely of causes assaciated wWih the
bank's processes, parsanng, technolagy and infrastructare, and frem extemal factors other than credH, marke:

and lkquidity risks, such a5 those arising from legal and reguiaiony requirements and generady accepied sandsmis
of corpoeete behaviour, Operational isks arise from all of tha Bank's eosrstiars.

Tha bank's Fbpﬁi-.-u ?s le manage cogmiiangl risk 56 a8 to balence the avaldance of financial [osses and damage
ke ing bank's reputation with cverall cost efaclivenesa and nnavaiian, In all casas; She bark's podcy requeres
campliancs with all applcatile egal and regulalony requiremants

Th_u Board of directors has defegated responsibility for cperalional fisk 1o the bank's manageTenT commitee
which is responsible for the develoomant and Implementation of carirals 8 address. aparabiona| riss This

respensioiRy [ suapoaried by the devalcpment of overad the bank standards tor e manapament of aparations
risx in e following anaas;

* Requraments for approcriate spgmepation of duties, inciuding the Wdapardenl aukheisatian of ransactons:

= Rgquirements far the recanaliasion and moniteing of ranssotins:
= Complianca wih regulstery énd ather legal requirements:;
= Documantateon of 2onirals and proceduras;

* Requirements: for 1he pericdic asgessrmant of operaticnal rsks facad, and the Bodequacy of conbrode and
procedures 1o addrass the rigks identified,

* Requrements for the regoming of oparaticnal losses and proposed remedial action;
= Devalcpmend of contingency plans;

= Training and piofeasianal develoament;

= Ethical and business slandards. and

* Rligk mitigation; including Insdrance whans this 5 cos! afscive,

Cempliancs with tha bank's standards |8 supparied by & programme of pariodc reviews undetaken by Inbamal
Augt The rmsals of inlemal puedlt reviews are submilbad to the sudh sommitiea aad seniof managemant of the
buarik

38 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Thaa bank has in placs & capital managemant policy to supper e long tarm caalied objectivae, risk appedia ano
bugirass activities, i wall a8 1o meal i reguiatory reguirements, The Dank's abjaciives whan mareging capits
ara;

1, Maintan sutficlent capital to mest mnimaum regulatary capilal requirements sat oy the Makdives Monetary
ALty (MHRAS

2, Hold suficient capial to suppart the bank's rsk apoeiie.

3. Allpcale capkal bo suppar tha bank's sirabegic abjesives

4, Engura thal the Gank maintaing capdal In-ordar ie achigys deb raling abjesinees and ta withstand fhe imges of
palentiel strass svaris,

{a} Regulatary capital adequacy

MiA. &8 the requbater of the Dank sets and manitors capssl reguinemants los tha bark. in implesnantng curenl
capilal rafa ragquiramenls; MM requires the bank o meinlsn prascrbed minimum rakios

Maldives Monatary Authonity has allowed the bank 1o recognize {he full impact on ihe scoplion of the impaimen|
raguiramenis uncier IFRS & and has roguesiad He banks that the Banks may recognize he adahinal impaiment
provissan under ks eguity whan Regulatary impairnent provision excssds W iMaarment provisian calcuste
Lnder iha ragulramernt of IFRS B

7
e VRS,
/ “gelaiie Farnes,

Mzl
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MALDIVES IBLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCLAL ETATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2024

30 CARITAL MAMAGEMENT

{a} Rogulatary capital adequacy {continued)

The bank's ragulatary capital consists of the swm of the fedewing alements; 2024 2023

MVH N
Tier 1 ("Cora"} Sapltal
Shane caphal 37 500,070 337,500,070
Relaired samings (shown as pravicus year ameunt a5 MMA reguremant] 313221 191,184 2a7
Sintutary resense (shown gs previous yaar amount 25 WMVA requimsment) 150,000,003 180,000,030
Lega: Fubare incoma tax banaflila {20,568 BTH) 14413 434
Tatal Tier 1 Capital T e A0S A T L
Ther 2 ["Supplamentary”) Capital
Current yoar-to-date profit 277,521,260 176 m30.033
Valualion adjustmen! {discoured 55%) 27 000 303 132,106,250
Gengrsl provisions (lmibed % 1,25% af Ry A8 571 080 20,290 147
Sub total 333 452 380 218,626 450
Eligible Tier 2 Capital (Limited o 100% of Tier | Capital) 333402 500 218,826,420
Tetal Tier 1 and Tier 2 Caphtal 1, 410555, 7AS B3 201 083
Lore capial [Ter 1 Capital) TrT.063,405 B4, 271.633
LCaptal base (Tier 1 and Thar 2 Captalp 1,110,555, THE BEZ 201 083
Riss-walghted aseets TA9E680, 307 LAR2.8542 604
Tier t Risk based capstal ratio fminkmum G5 10.4% 11.4%
Talal risk basad capial rako (minkimum 12%) 14, 8%: 15.2%

The risk-weightac asseis have teen calcuisled by moliphing e value of sach calegory of anset using the sk
weighd specified by tho Makdives Manetory Aulhariy,

The bank's pelicy = 1o malntain a strong caplia! base i maisian ireskar, credior and markat corfizancs and ta
sustain tha future devalopmant of the buainess. The impac) af the |ewval af canital an’ sharahoidars’ return is sésn
racognised and the Bank recagnises the need to maintain a balance betwasn the higher refums thed mighl ba
possiblo wiih greater oearing and U sdvantapes and securty aforded by a sound capital positian

The bank complied wikh Saael | rermewonk 82 agoped by e M
1) Capits allocation

Mansgarrant usea igulsiery capkal ratice bo manfar ibs capitol bases. The sliccation of copial bobwean specific
gparations and acthates is, o a large eabant, diven by apdimmsalion of the felurn achaved an the capitad aliocaied,
The amount of capilad allocaled o aach ooesalion of activity is bazad primariy an regulaiory cagital reguiremants,
ol i\ s0me cades the reguistony requirameants do fal fuly eflec the vandng degees of nsk associated wih
differerl asiivEEs. In 3uch cades, the capial requirements may be flewad to rafiest Sfferdng risk profiles. subjact ta
the avadal leval of cap#al 16 suppan & patesilar aparabon o ackly mal faling balaw the minimuem amaenl
rafuirad far reguialory puwfpases, The process of alocabing cagilal fo spaciic operafions and achvities s
undemaken incspandentlly of hese responsile Foc the operation by Rsk Managernan! and Cemplancs Uil
[RKCLE, and |8 sunject 1o reviaw by the Board Rigk and CompEancs Commitee{BRCC).

Althcugh maximisation af the return oA risk-ad|usied capital is the princioal basis wsed in d=termining how capital
is allacated o particulaEr oparatians of achviies, it is nok the cole basic used for decision making. Accaunt it alko
takon of synargies wiih othar aparations and actvitias, Be avallabilky of management and ather resaurcas, and
the 11 of the activily wilh kenges-teom stratagic cojecives of tha bank The bank's policies in mspect of capita
management and aliccation &ra raviewsd mguiaty by the baard of directars,
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2024

30 [a] Valustian models

The bank measures far values using the falieswing fair walue hierarchy, which reflects e significance of the
inputs uzad in making tha messuremanis,

Level 1! Impuls thal are quoied makel prices {unagusted] in ackive markess for identical insfruments,

Level I Inputs aifer than guoled prcas incuded within Level | that ane shsarvable athar direetly lie, a3
prices) e indirecdy (e derived Fom grices) This categary includes inslrumands vatkied uislng. quated markat
PrRoaE i activa markets far eimilas mskrumanis: guoled prices for idantical or simiar instrumants 0 merkats that
a| coneidered leas than active; or oiber valustion technioguss i whish al significant inpuls’ are direclly or
indiractly sbssrvabla from maret cata.

Laval 3: Inputs that are unobeervable, This category includas all nstruments far which e valuation fecnnigue
includes inputs net basad on obsarvalie dale and the unchservable Inputs have @ significant efee an the
instrument's valuation. This categery includes instruments that are valued based an quoled prices for similar
natruments for whech signibcant wnobsarvable sdiusiments or sssumptions are required o reflect differances
Dpabwaen Fie insiruments

Waluation techniques noude discownled cash flow modeis. Assumgptiong and npuls used in valualion
lecnniques nclude risk-frae and benchmark interest rates. credit spreads and other prespiurs used in
aatimaling discount rates,

The objactive of valuaton tchniquaes &40 smive at & fair vaiue measuremant fial ratkcts e orice thal waud
ba racaived 1o sail the assel or paid (o fransfer tha fability in an crdeely transaclion betwean market parlicizants
al tha meazuremeni daha,

The bank usss widely recognised valation modess o delerning the fair valus of common and simple financial
nstrumants, such a8 profit rate, that wse only chservable markel cata and requine lille management judgman
and eslimation. Cheervable pricas or medel inputs are usually avalisble i the market for lsted equily
scaritied. The Availabily of absercable market prices and model inpois reduces the need for managemarn
judgment -and estimalion and also reduces the yncerenly ssepclated with oelsrmiding fair valies. The
availabiity of observabie market prices end inpuls varias depanding on the products and misrkets and |8 praone
fo changes based o specific avenis and general conditions in tha financial mandets

{b) Valeatlon framework

The bank has an estabished canliod framewark with respact o the messurement of few values. Thig framewark
includes & Preduet Contral functian, which is indepandent of frant alfice maragsmeant and reports ba the Head
af Finance, ard. which has avarell responsibiiily for indapendenlly werilfying tbe resulls of frading and
imvestiment aperaticns and all significant falr valug massuremants. Specific conrolg Pcluda;

* \Wenfization of ohearvalile peicrg:
+ Re-parformance of model veluatians,

+ & meviow and approved process for naw modals and changes b modals invoiving bath Product Cantred and
Bank Market Risk;

+ Quarbary calibration and back-tasting of models aqaing chearved marke! ransacians;
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMSER 2024

3% FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (GONTIRUED)
(b} Valuation Framework {Continead)

*Analysis and invesligation of significant daily vaustion moverments: and

¢ Review of significan! unabssrvabla ingids, valuation adissimants and sgniScant changes io the fair value
reasuement of Lavel 3 inslrurments comparad with e previcus month, by 8 committes of seriar Preduct Control
anc Bank Market Risk parsonnel Whan thirg party information, sch ai broker quoles or pricing asivces, is usesd
lo megene far valug, Produst Condral assesses and decuments the avidence obtained from the third parfies ta
Buppar the concluson et such waluations maet the requirements at IFRS. This indudes:

* Warityirg thatthe broker of picing servce s aopeoved by Te Bank for usa in Pricing the nelevant type of firancial
inatrurment

* Understanding how [he For volue has bean grived 8t the extent to which || repressrss achial markat
Iransactions and whether il represants a quoted prics in an active markat for an idertical instrumen:

* When prices for similar instruments are used o measure fsir value, how these prices fave besn adjussad 10
reflect the charactenztas al the instrument sutiect o messuement: and

v If & rumber of quoles for the same fnancial instfument have bean chiaked, than how falr velua has Basn
desarmined usng Mote guatns

+ Significard valuation s3ues are reporad fa the Avdit Commities.

The bank uses widely recognised valuation modals 10 datarmine the fair value of comman and simole fnanca
msirumenis. Tha avalabiily of obsarsable marked prices and madal nouts reduces the need for mandgement
judgement and estimation and aldo reduces the uncarainly essociatad wih determining fair valwes, The Bank
uses absarvable marked prices and Inputs (o determing tha vakie invastmant securities designaled ai FYOGCL

{c] Falr walup higrarchy - fnancial instruments measured at fair value

The folicwireg fable analyses financial Instramants measuned at fa value at tha mporting cate, oy the: lewal in i
fair wailus Figrarchy inta which fhe dgir value meagimman i= categorized, The amaunts ame basad an |l4e valses
resagnized in the statemant of financiel pesition. The far wvalues inchude any cafered differarces bebasen the
kranaaclion price and the fair value on indisl recagnition when the faicvalue is based on 8 valuation Echnigue (k)
uses Unabasreable inputs

Measured at fair valua Lozl 4 Lawal 2 Leval 3 Todnk
MR MYR VR MR
11" Decembar 2024
veaimants F'l"ﬁl'ldﬂ!ﬂﬂ" measuied al FVTPL - 21,682 Tag - 121,852 729
Inwasimants
Equity nysairmante: measured at FYOC] 147000000 - - 127000000
137 000,000 12 6B 729 - BB REITIE
Moasurad at falr value Ll 1 Lawal 2 Lawel 3 Toiad
MVR MYR MVER MR
39" Docember 2023
invesimanis mandatority measurad at FUTRL S 120,501,238 - 120,501 238
Investmants
Equity investmants massurad at P0G 112, 500000 - - 112,500,000
112,500,000 120,501 238 - 233091 2248
224 2023
Tatal pawns and losses recogrdsed i G0 MVR WWVR

Fairvalue resere (agully instruments) - net change in fak vakie (excluding tax| 14,800,600 10,440 000
iMesa 100

|: \‘_-—4) |
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MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLE
MOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T DECEMBER 2004

48 FAIR WALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Eﬂ.HTlﬂLlED?
{d) Lavel 3 fair valza measuremants
L Reconcillation

Except for one insirument. all tha other Fnancial instrumenis which nesds 1s be Measure mandaiorify at fair valus has
@ot profil fesat optian 1o 1he bank for each 3 monihs and sccardingsy, the maximum fir valie expasure wolld be for
tha. next 3 manths varialion of the profil rate as ihe instrumenis ae backed wilh Me Sowareign gusraniees. Furher,
Ihe remaining maturity. of the ramaining financial instrument is 07 maonths and sincs the counlerpany s a repubsd
financial inattution, thare had nat bean any Bignificant fair vata adjustment {hrough 1hat instrumend and accandingly,
i haxs besan concluded that the carmyirg value of tha inairumert provides & Tsr spprowimation of (he Fair valg,

li. Obsarvable inputs usod In measuring Fair valug - Leval 2

The Bank has detarmined (e indcative peoft rates in omder to deléarine fatr varug of the imssrument 35 the rpuls

uead bg ot 3st Docomnber 2022 i measuring fingncial BElrumanis catagoneed a8 Leval 2 inthe ek value hisranchy
iil. Thee offect of obaarvabbs inputs on falr walue measuremant

Athough the bank bolsues thal Hs estimates of feir valie are appropriale. the use of ddfese menodiogies or
essumplions could lead f different measuremenss of falr value. Howsaver, as iha bank anly has dona the fak
valuation of tha financial instruments mangalorlly measwed at FUTPL whigh 8re i short tarm nalue wih minoe
Impact of the fair waluation cue 42 the fact that thosa faciilies are lesgely provided far 3 monihe periad where the orafi
wauld be rasel 1 sach 3 manths 4 required and ane facify onky with & toqe) pesiod of 1 wear, ibara b 0o sush Far
valus impact of thoes iratruments and the change of methods or assumpsons wauld nal resull i any magar changs
io those fair vahuas, Waluasan fechnique for invesimaniy mandalorily measwred & FYTPL are based on discour
cagtllan analysis ang ey NpUtE Lo (s maadel & aslimated cashflows and indiaative arafil ratas

1@ Financial instruments not meassured a1 fair valua

The following 1Ak sate cut the fair values of financlal instruments net measurad at far valug. For e megority of the
financial a=sels and fahiities, 1 fair vaiues are nol materia by difansnt rom $heir sarying amounts. sinca the pofE
payE0le on ihess borowings Hfundings) i3 eliher close ta market rabes or tha bamowings {kundigs) are of & shorl-
Rerm nabdng,

Firanckal

Financial asaels tabifties at Total carrying
al amortised cost S i it amen
31" Decambar 2024 VR NV MV
Agsats
Cash and balancas with cther Banks 418135436 - 416,135,438
Balancae with Maklives Maratany Sulhanty 1,820,234, 334 - 1,820,254 331
Dua frem banks 154 028975 154026575
mfﬁ;ﬂ other fnancial instramants megsired at 2 778 815,559 " e
Receiabies fram finanzing acihaes 5,744,408 182 - 5 744,458,182
CHner sassla 253,102,465 - 263,102 458
10,564, 774, 948 - 10,964 774 848
Liakdlitlas
Cushomars' acoourds . §127.012 681 g12r.012.631
Due fo panis and cthar
firancial insstations L L LA LSk U Q95 362,134
Lanse Labiitiea - 0I5 558 844 05 558 648
Oned linkiltes = §5. 358 TE5 58, 355, "5

- 10,337 261 820 10237 2%1 K20




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

HOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINLED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3187 DECEMSER 2024

a4

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ICONTINUED)
(%] Financial Instrumands not measwoed o falr valuo (continuge)

Financig| Fimamcial
' smsote at liobilition at | oUM GaMTying
amertised coel  amartisod cost TR
31" Decamber 2022 MVR [FRT MV
Asaels
Gash and balanoas with oihar Diamks 419,351 119 i 415351, 118
Balancas wnh Maldives Monetary Autharity BZ1.280143 = 024200, 143
Irvegtments in ofher financial sinaments maasurad 3
SO isme 2 IBEHTAT ) 2.1568.873, 771
Facaivablas fram finanong
arthuiies 4 105.784.558 3 4 105, 76d 453
Cither assals 188,277 448 - 1&&.2?:"|449
FFTL ST, 04 . 7771, 5T DA
Liabiliities
Custamers” accounts - B 53T ETE, 2EY 8,837,674, 281
Fuia o Benke and sther finanoal
T CARDotET4 250,051,874
L §abililes - [0 E58.087 o0, BE&5 DRT
Ciner Eabliliag - T D55 449 T, CES A48
= T.256,560,8T1 7 284 650 671

Where Ikey are avalabie, the 1air value of lsans ard advances (financing) is bosed on cDsarvabla mamket Farsasions

Vinens oebrvebie maros rarsactiors are nol aveilable, fair value ia ealimabad useg valuabon models, such as
disexinted cash flow techniques

To smorowe the aocuraty of the vakialion esimaele lof retsd and smaler commescal loans (hnamcing 1aciitina)
homaganeaus loans (financing Fediies) are grouped imo portfoies with similar chamgctaneiics Bueh ge wimage, LTV

rafcg lll'-al cuslty of colaters produst and Dooowar (EUsInME KRR, pregRyment nd dellnguancy rales; and Sefaul
prabability.

Tre fair wahes of Sapealls rom customors: is-astmated using dispaurssd cash Now LonnEUEs. Baphing (8 rames that
ara afferud for dopasits of simiar matuitias and tamyd. The fair walius of deposis payabla an demand Is the amourt
nayabis 3 1ha raponting dala

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Th bank camiad oul bansacions v Lha ordinary course of business on an arm's l=ngth basis at commescial rains with
partkes who ane defined &s related parlies as per he inlomatonal Accoynling Standand — 1AS 24 on “Related Farly

Cisciasues®

Aamia it
"'""":;; Roistionship  Froduct  Wature of the fransection 2024 2023
paia o MVR VR
[ Shereholder Commodty Opening balancs 31,008,207 93, 02T 823
Muabang  Frofil for the parog EO§, 571 3,182 461
[Barovweng]  Betfasmant (3 515378y (6510877
- 31,008,207
Governmert af Sharenolder Islamic Cpening balanca 1.ms0 427 883 i B ]
Maidves T-Biis My IreslmieEnis 5T 200,000 42, 370,000
Frofit recognised for the penod 106800, 150 73,480, 603
Profit receivad far the peripd (170 180 588) [100 681 652
Impairment alosanos 2,228 122 £al
184 535 520 1.TAl AT DRI

i
e
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MALDIVES I5LAMIC BANK PLC

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTIMUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 3024
40 AELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS [CONTIMUED)

40.2

#Hrd

Lo

Mamo of ko 2 Amimant Aengank
rolated paryy  Cotionship  Product Mature ol the transaction 121 2023
NS MVR
Chowarnmi of Sharghalder  |=mna’ Jpening baarncs T.853 415 101,400, 183
Makhvas Prafit for the penica ST a8l HED 454
Saltiamani A, TR0 B4 3,704 3%
4,41 7.583.818
|rapai st allowanoa 1021
q.uﬂ% ¥ Bk 5aa
Mlachves Morstary  Rebedioa  Canisl Bank  Mismum Reserve Raguammers Bdd, 305, 404 EE1. 270 325
Authorty shaeholder Raserva Bl in Excess of MER with
ki TTE.024. 907 260,000 818
1.520.234 331 B2 2k 143
Maldives Monglary Ranted ma Commesity  ineastrmes: in Gommond
Authonty siehoider Murabahs  Murskebs i #50.000,000 76,000,200
Peofit reconised for the period 12118.730 11150
Profil recaived for i period (11.895.8208) 10,843 507
Ifimnrmen| powarcs §‘2|H:E 15
444 110,445 115,2@_%'
Maldiis Monalary Faldedio s \Waknola B Al breasireect in Wakaln T 80000 -
Aulharily sherehalder  Isthimar  Frafl ecagnised for ihe penog 5L 050 .
1,443 A58 7
Maldivess Pansien  Shieraholder  Depcsh Opaning bakansa EEE 343,008 476,403 pos
lenrmmlun Trarsasons curing tha yesr 300 916,601 114938107
Crfice 289,251,507 508,343 006
Amana Takahd srersholder  Dopgall Cpaning Galess 43 2480148 3G, TEO, 094
(Wieidivas) Ple. Trarsatiors dured e year ThE B85 B 485, 000
26450 110 a3, 249,074
Goliestively, but nof individualy, signiicard tansaciians

The Gowernmant of Meldiae hakds 28% of the shorehoiding of the Bank The Bank concluciad ansactons i entites

areciy or Indinecly coninoid by I Govarnmanl of Malkdwes through s suthorsies, agsncies. sRikations anG ofal

ofganizations, collactwely relemad lo as gowemment emitiss The Bek cendudied ransactiong wih athor governmanl

retakad enalites including but not limited 5o lrsestments, inaneng and daposiis

Transactions with key managemaoni pemmonned

The asgregeis values of ranssctions and culsianding Daiercas felaieg o key MAREJAMEnt parsansal were i iobows.
Trarsaztion valiea for the  Mazimum balarce forthoyoar  Balanco cwistandéng as at 31

ywar prifded 31 Decomber enced 31 Decamber Diogaitkber
o2 ] 33 Rk Fairn Faart froorint
Secred fandng 4171810 973,087 37BN EST 5 353 508 17,615,722 3,874,483
Eehar finanang 3 6U7 085 ISA0ET  REERTI 523 405 2,306,077 q76 438
Depoetz receivad 77035005 43000672 10,380 556 25780, 326 2 B 3097 24
B4 B04,A0T 5837068 A1 M98 BT ﬂ%m’l' _F‘!H“H_""-iﬁ'1

Tha peofi sharged o0 baleead autsiasdmg fram reliied padias arnounded S MYR 922 835 202 MVH 173851, The
prafit aaad & Balancas ouistandicg Io relsisd pacles amaunied o MVE 20 484 {2023 18,016 The morigoges andg
gacurad firancng grarfed am secumd over oopery of the mepecive bomowers {cusioman) Cther balanos: ae not
saoured and no guarsess horee beesn olioined

Mo impinment fosses howe been recorded ogainsi balanges ouistanding durng ihe panod wih key management
persorred, end no soechic slloannca has been made for mpairtent lkasses on baercas wiEn kay managament parsamal
ard b immediale relalives 3t e eporing cale

Tha key managamant persannal ame fha members of $a Board of Direchors and Exstutve mambers. The Bank Ras pad
ary amagnt of MVA 28808 (144 ps shart-Serm employmant benofiis 1o the koy management persannal during tha year
ercksd Jial Dacamber 2024 (2023 MWR B 587 670

pelnitts F:a”":'ﬁr;-




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK FLC

NOTES T THE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
FUR THE YEAR EMDED 35T DECEMAER 2024

41 Maturity analysis b liabilites and assts

The latie besy ahiows tha assals and Enbiibes acconding 1o when they am mEeciad bo be recowerad o seitied

ASSETS
Caah & balafces with
othar banks

Dalsrcss wiin Maldhas
r-hnmrr.-.mm-rf
D Irem banis

vl s i duity’
BBCUntios

Invesimants in othar
finarcial inalrumenns

Hal reosvaiies foem
feearaing acgvibes

Peaperty and sgupmen
Fagr-of-uie geseis
Intargibe assets

Cihar aasats

Dalwrmsd |ax pseap
Toka! annnts

LIABILITIES
Customen accounis

Dues 30 banks and o e
lrancal metuliors

Frowsions

Curmeni tax |Eabdily
L=emn dnbites
Cthar kabitiea

Tt Haldlites

Het pasets | {liabilities)

&t December 2024 ¥ist Docomber 3023
Within 17 montse Aftar 12 Wishin 12

el e Tatal mm:m Aftar 12 moedhe Tatal

NYR MYR M¥R MR ER M
410 155 438 A1, 125,426 419 354 918 = 418,241 118
T2 3 1630 234,33 229, 2680, 143 - 21,200,143

163082 298 - iR e - - =

TRT 000000 127 00C: 000 - 112,500 000 92,500,000
2533 E48 TED 280221 B2 2 BT EET 308 2007 508 428 60 558 443 22700 nas
1,305242.207  a430maes 5 T44 JEE 1A TOT.GA2.218 3, 395702,341 4 908 784 585
B 118554 E8T 118 244,087 - 01570, 547 B AT a7
. 15 SEs 47 105, RES 474 = 115,065, TH LRy
= 12014, 827 13.0%9 527F . 11,293,822 11,282 812
JE1 404,312 784 404 312 1TR 7T BOG B LTEETT A
£020,273 E.G20,273 &, 1A AT : £ 193 378

R M YT TR T T KT

B4RZTEI 020 44 210 358 2 137,073 881 8110615443 T18960,833 8,837 876389
SE5,384,134 $58 564 134 298,051 674 . J58.A51 AT

. A0t 572 3,081,072 - T.007 450 007 488

E4 783 847 - B THI BT ap 550 150 30 520 136
12583, 137 raoaT, 142 £0.550 64D 10,546 555 T4, E06, 088 00 558 (A7

TE Q0 543 - 78001 8L3 73,631 800 - 735,200
5490, 464, 655 TEOETR 440 10,340,743128 6,501 ,BDE141 &04.367 480 T,S087TLATI
(3,194, 188,865) 4,345 251,768 1.154,661,B13 (2,256,855, 731  3,784071,274 B20,114.343




MALDIVES ISLAMIC BANK PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [GTJHTH-LIED!
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2024

42

43

45

COMMITMENTS 204 203
Ty R MVE

{i] Financial commitmants
Lattar of credits 47 23,508 o4, T8, 126
Guararlees and bonds 35,004,531 9,288 056
Bil collaction acc=alance AGGET 020 15,570,761
(i) Fimancing eommitments
Undirawm financing lacilties 1,173 220 560 1,384 581,976

SR AL e RS 2 T [
Total 1Z728TB.208 1414980571

e ———————e
CARTAL COMMITMENTS

During the yaar, tha Sana s entered into sevaral agreements wih supnliors far the implemantstian of & new dats
fECavery center and iha building of a new cffica spaca. As at 315t Dacemiber 2024, the capitsl commitmends af (he
Bank & MVR 17 858, 705 (year anded 3181 Dacembar 2023 - MVR 20,658,428),

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On1Sh March 2025 the Board of Cirectors hes recommandad a fotal cvidand of MYR 103 050,032,058 squvalent o
W1R 480 per orginany share far the vesr enced on 31at Desamber 34,

The 1ol duidend consisle of bolh cash and banus sheres, wih & paymen) of 50% cash dividand af MV 225 par
Bhare and (he remaining MVR 228 per share jo be distrbubed as borus shares i lieu of cash dividend. af the iscug
prica ol MYR 35 per sharo (“he bonus shares™).

This dividend raccmmardaticn & subject to the final approval of the sharsholders at the 1507 Aniusl Gensal
Mealing MAGM ) of the Bani.

ha gther croumslances. have artisen sinco Ina reponing date which require adustments foder dissosure in the
financial slatameants

TERMINOLOGY USED [N FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AF mentined in Note 2 (7] ° Basic of Praparabon”, fess frandcal stalements hove baan prepared and presantad in

accormance with Irternatianad Firancial Aeperling Standarda ("IFRSsT: The foliowing comparison is ganen for tha
readers of fia fnancial staternents to understand the terminglogies as i ke wilh Shasah Law

IFRSs Terminokgy Shari'ah Tarminakogy
Cusiomer
Franie: Bank) _
Barnraing Finmniing
Laan Firianging Faciily
Inleress raie Prafii | Fantal rale
Inaremantal Qorroeing. rmata Inerarnantal Finansing raba
Feepaymant Faymart
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